
Hog Park Reservoir

Cheyenne Board of Public Utilities
Regular Monthly Board Meeting

Monday, June 15, 2020

Page 1 of 162



 

 

1 

AGENDA FOR BOARD MEETING 

 City of Cheyenne Board of Public Utilities 

Monday, June 15, 2020 

Timothy E. Wilson Board of Public Utilities Administration/Engineering Building 

1st Floor Conference Room, 2416 Snyder Avenue, Cheyenne, Wyoming 

3:00 p.m.

 

IN ATTENDANCE: 

Mary Guthrie 

Matthew Pope 

John Edwards 

Allan Cunningham 

Brad Brooks 

Clint Bassett 

Matt Buelow 

 

 

Bruce Hattig 

Kathy Kellner 

Ashley Miller 

Frank Strong 

Dena Egenhoff 

Erin Lamb 

Elizabeth Lance 

 

HEREWITH THE FOLLOWING: 

Minutes of Board Meetings Held: 

May 18, 2020 — Regular Meeting 

Voucher List for Approval 

Financial and Supplementary 

Statement

1. ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION 

 

A. CONSENT AGENDA: (All agenda items listed with the designation of             are 

considered to be routine items by the Board of Public Utilities and will be enacted by one 

motion. The design of the Consent Agenda is that there will be no separate discussion on 

these items unless a member of the board so requests, in which event, the item will be 

removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the agenda.) 

 

B. Minutes/Meetings/Proclamations/Presentations: 

1. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held May 18, 2020  

2. Approve the Minutes of the Special Board Meeting held May 22, 2020 

3. Sign the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held May 18, 2020 

4. Sign the Minutes of the Special Board Meeting held May 22, 2020 

5. Announcement of Upcoming Employee Summer Picnic: Thursday, July 9, 2020 

6. Announcement of Upcoming Monthly Board Meeting: Monday, July 20, 2020 

7. Introduction of Attendees at the Meeting 

 

C.   Comments from Mayor/City Council 

 1.   

 

D. Old Business: 

1.   

2. 

 

E.   Financials: 

1.   Financial Statements as of Month-end May 31, 2020 

2.  Vouchers:  

 05/29/2020 652,907.01 Vouchers, Garbage Collections 

05/29/2020 521,633.81 Payroll 

06/15/2020 278,035.67 Vouchers, Garbage Collections 

  

3. Investments of Cash: – 05/01/2020-05/31/2020 

None 

  

 CA 

 CA 

 CA 

Page 2 of 162



 

 

2 

Staff’s recommendation is to accept the financial statements as presented and to 

approve vouchers (included in the Board packet and if necessary distributed via email 

prior to the Board meeting) and investments of cash. 

  

F. Request Board Action – Approval and Awards: 

 

1. Approve the Director to execute two (2) information sharing agreements with 

Summit Engineering, LLC and Gateway Construction, LLC.  

 

2. Approve award for Material Acquisition: Filter 6 Media project to 

CarbonFilt LLC. 

 

3. Approve contract to Renew Employee Assistance Program with 

Aetna. 

 

4. Approve rejection of all four bids for the Sherard Hydroelectric 

Generation Facility Project and implement the plan presented to 

continue developing the project. 

 

5. Approve award for the FY2021 Water Rehab and North Pressure 

Zone Interconnect and Expansion Project Design to AVI, PC and 

associated budget transfer. 

 

2. PROJECTS (Informational items only) 

 

A. Release of Retainage Status – Ashley Miller, Administration Manager 

 

B. Report on Agreements, Contracts, Easements, Assignments, Licenses, Etc. – 

Ashley Miller, Administration Manager 

 

3. REPORTS (Informational items only) 

         

A. Director 

1. Report 

2.    

 

B. Administration 

1. Manager’s Report 

2. Water Conservation/PR Report 

 

 

C. Engineering 

1. Manager’s Report 

2.  

 

D.   Human Resources 

1. Manager’s Report 

2.  

 

 CA 

 CA 

 CA 

Page 3 of 162



 

 

3 

E. Operations & Maintenance 

1. Manager’s Report    

2.  

 

F. Water Reclamation  

1. Manager’s Report       

2.  

 

G.   Water Treatment 

1. Manager’s Report  

2.  

 

4. OTHER BUSINESS 

 

A.   

 

5. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

A. Legal Matters: 

1.   

2.  

 

B. Real Estate:  

1.    

2.  

 

C. Personnel Matters: 

1.   

2.  

 

 

Page 4 of 162



BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 

CITY OF CHEYENNE, WYOMING 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, May 18, 2020 

PAGE 1 

 

PRELIMINARY – UNDER IN-HOUSE REVIEW 

 

 

The Board of Public Utilities of the City of Cheyenne, Wyoming assembled this day 

at 3:00 p.m. in the 1st Floor Conference Room of the Timothy E. Wilson City of Cheyenne 

Board of Public Utilities’ Administration/Engineering Building, 2416 Snyder Avenue, 

Cheyenne, Wyoming. 

 

Present via Teleconference were: 

Mary Guthrie, President 

Matt Pope, Secretary 

Allan Cunningham, Member 

John Edwards, Member 

Brad Brooks, Director 

Elizabeth Lance, Board Attorney 

Bruce Hattig, Engineering/Water Resource Manager 

Matt Buelow, Water Reclamation Manager 

Clint Bassett, Water Treatment Manager 

Kathy Kellner, Human Resource Manager  

Ashley Miller, Administration Manager 

Frank Strong, Operations and Maintenance Manager 

Bryce Dorr, Capital Projects Supervisor 

David Cole, Construction Project Coordinator 

Dena Egenhoff, Water Conservation/PR Specialist 

Lynn Butts, Accounting Supervisor 

Erin Lamb, Executive Admin. Assistant 

Dan Mummert, Trihydro Corp 

Keith Zabka, Mechanical Systems Inc 

 

 

 The regular board meeting for the Board of Public Utilities was called to order 

by Mary Guthrie, President at approximately 3:00 p.m. Monday, May 18, 2020.  

 

 Ms. Guthrie noted the first item on the agenda was the consent agenda (CA) and 

called for a motion to approve the items on the CA. Matthew Pope moved and Allan 

Cunningham seconded approval of the items on the CA as presented including:  

• The minutes of the regular board meeting held April 20, 2020. 

• The minutes of the special board meeting held April 27, 2020. 

• Director to execute two (2) information sharing agreements with BenchMark 

Engineers PC, and AVI. 

• Director to sign the Common Water and Sewer Agreement with PerCo Two LLC. 

• Discharge and extinguish the uncollectible accounts from accounts receivable – 

Fiscal Year 2020. 

The motion carried. 

 

 Ms. Guthrie asked Director Brad Brooks to announce upcoming meetings. The monthly 

Board Meeting for June will be held Monday, June 15, 2020. Director Brooks announced 

additional teleconference attendees. 

 

 There was no old business. 

 

 Administration Manager, Ashley Miller, reported on and answered questions regarding 

the financial statements for the month ending April 30, 2020.  

 

Presented to the Board for review and approval was the following list of vouchers: 

 04/30/2020 1,175,191.51 Vouchers, Garbage Collections 

04/30/2020 516,976.34 Payroll 

05/18/2020 139,444.07 Vouchers, Garbage Collections 

 05/18/2020 3,846,033.75 Vouchers, Garbage Collections 

A motion was made by John Edwards and seconded by Allan Cunningham approving the 

financial statements for month-end April 30, 2020 as presented, the vouchers for payment, 

and the Investments of Cash. The motion carried. Warrants of the Board of Public Utilities 

are signed by Mayor Marian Orr, Board President Mary Guthrie and Administration Manager 

Ashley Miller, and authority is given to ANB Bank of Cheyenne, Wyoming to charge these 

warrants to the proper Board of Public Utilities accounts at this bank.  

 

  

 

Page 5 of 162



BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 

CITY OF CHEYENNE, WYOMING 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, May 18, 2020 

PAGE 2 

 

PRELIMINARY – UNDER IN-HOUSE REVIEW 

 Ms. Miller reported on and answered questions regarding the request for approval 

of the project monitoring services through contract amendment three with Plante Moran 

to provide additional project management services of phase II and the utility billing 

and permitting software implementation. A motion was made by John Edwards and seconded 

by Matthew Pope to approve the project monitoring services through contract amendment 

three with Plante Moran. The motion carried. 

 

 Water Reclamation Manager, Matthew Buelow, reported on and answered questions 

regarding request for approval of the award to Huber Technology for the equipment 

procurement contract for the Dewatering Improvements Project Screw Press Dewater 

Equipment. A motion was made by Allan Cunningham and seconded by John Edwards to approve 

the award to Huber Technology.  The motion carried. 

  

 Operations and Maintenance Manager, Frank Strong, reported on and answered 

questions regarding the request for approval of the Evers Boulevard Change Order #1 with 

the City of Cheyenne for fly ash stabilization and approval of associated budget transfer. 

A motion was made by Allan Cunningham and seconded by John Edwards to approve the Evers 

Boulevard Change Order #1 with the City of Cheyenne and approval of associated budget 

transfer. The motion carried. 

 

 Mr. Strong reported on and answered questions regarding the request for approval 

to award the FY2020 Water Rehab Project to Aztec Construction and approval of associated 

budget transfer. A motion was made by Matt Pope and seconded by Allan Cunningham to 

approve the award for the FY2020 Water Rehab Project to Aztec Construction and approval 

of associated budget transfer. The motion carried. 

 

 Human Resources Manager, Kathy Kellner, reported on and answered questions 

regarding the approval of Amendment Number Four of the Professional Services Agreement 

with NOVO Benefits to provide benefit consulting through March 31, 2021.  A motion was 

made by Allan Cunningham and seconded by John Edwards to approve Amendment Number Four 

of the Professional Services Agreement with NOVO Benefits. The motion carried. 

 

 Ms. Miller reported on releases of retainage and contracts, easements, change 

orders and amendments that were approved in the amount of $25,000 or less.  

 

 Mr. Brooks reported on and answered questions regarding the Director’s report.  

 

 Ms. Miller reported on and answered questions related to the Administration 

Division.  

 

 Water Conservation and Public Relations Specialist Dena Eganhoff reported on and 

answered questions regarding water conservation, reservoirs, snowpack and public 

relations. 

 

  Engineering & Water Resources Manager, Bruce Hattig, reported on and answered 

questions related to the Engineering and Water Resource Division. 

 

  Ms. Kellner reported on and answered questions regarding Human Resources. 

 

 Mr. Strong reported on and answered questions related to the Operations and 

Maintenance Division.  

  

 Mr. Buelow reported on and answered questions related to the Water Reclamation 

Division.  

 

 Water Treatment Manager, Clint Bassett, reported on and answered questions related 

to the Water Treatment Division.  

 

  

Page 6 of 162



BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 

CITY OF CHEYENNE, WYOMING 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, May 18, 2020 

PAGE 3 

 

PRELIMINARY – UNDER IN-HOUSE REVIEW 

 

 The Board meeting adjourned into Executive Session at approximately 3:50 p.m. to 

discuss possible Real Estate matters under Wyoming State Statutes W.S. 16-4-

405(a)(vii)(To consider the selection of a site or the purchase of real estate when the 

publicity regarding the consideration would cause a likelihood of an increase in price).  

No action was taken during Executive Session. 

 

The Board meeting Executive Session adjourned at approximately 4:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

      ______________________________________ 

      Mary B. Guthrie, President 

 

 

 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      Matthew Pope, Secretary 

  
 

Page 7 of 162



BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 

CITY OF CHEYENNE, WYOMING 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

Friday, May 22, 2020 

PAGE 1 

 

PRELIMINARY – UNDER IN-HOUSE REVIEW 

 

 

The Board of Public Utilities of the City of Cheyenne, Wyoming assembled this day 

at 3:00 p.m. in the 1st Floor Conference Room of the Timothy E. Wilson City of Cheyenne 

Board of Public Utilities’ Administration/Engineering Building, 2416 Snyder Avenue, 

Cheyenne, Wyoming. 

 

Present via Teleconference were: 

Mary Guthrie, President 

Matt Pope, Secretary 

Allan Cunningham, Member 

John Edwards, Member 

Brad Brooks, Director 

Elizabeth Lance, Board Attorney 

 

 

Bruce Hattig, Engineering/Water Resource Manager 

Matt Buelow, Water Reclamation Manager 

Ashley Miller, Administration Manager 

Frank Strong, Operations and Maintenance Manager 

David Cole, Capital Projects Engineer 2 

Dena Egenhoff, Water Conservation/PR Specialist 

 

 The special board meeting for the Board of Public Utilities was called to order 

by Mary Guthrie, President at approximately 3:00 p.m. Friday, May 22, 2020. President 

Guthrie noted this meeting was properly noticed to the public. 

 
 A motion was made by Allan Cunningham and seconded by John Edwards to approve 

the Board of Public Utilities Resolution recognizing the decision of the City of 

Cheyenne to divert the Board of Public Utilities share of revenues received pursuant 

to city of Cheyenne contract no. 5902 and city resolution no. 6023 to be used in the 

city’s FY2021 budget and providing that the BOPU’s revenues will be restored in full 

in FY2022.   

 

 The Special Board meeting adjourned at approximately 3:05 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

      ______________________________________ 

      Mary B. Guthrie, President 

 

 

 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      Matthew Pope, Secretary 

  
 

Page 8 of 162



Page 9 of 162



Page 10 of 162



Page 11 of 162



Page 12 of 162



Page 13 of 162



Page 14 of 162



Page 15 of 162



Page 16 of 162



Page 17 of 162



Page 18 of 162



Page 19 of 162



Page 20 of 162



Page 21 of 162



Page 22 of 162



Page 23 of 162



Page 24 of 162



Page 25 of 162



Page 26 of 162



Page 27 of 162



Page 28 of 162



Page 29 of 162



Page 30 of 162



Page 31 of 162



Page 32 of 162



Page 33 of 162



Page 34 of 162



Page 35 of 162



Page 36 of 162



Page 37 of 162



Page 38 of 162



Page 39 of 162



Page 40 of 162



Page 41 of 162



Page 42 of 162



Page 43 of 162



Page 44 of 162



Page 45 of 162



Page 46 of 162



Page 47 of 162



Page 48 of 162



Page 49 of 162



Page 50 of 162



Page 51 of 162



Page 52 of 162



Page 53 of 162



Page 54 of 162



Page 55 of 162



Page 56 of 162



Page 57 of 162



Page 58 of 162



Page 59 of 162



Page 60 of 162



Page 61 of 162



Page 62 of 162



Page 63 of 162



Page 64 of 162



Page 65 of 162



Page 66 of 162



Page 67 of 162



Page 68 of 162



I. GIS INFORMATION SHARING AGREEMENTS   

 

II. GENERAL DESCRIPTION AND PURPOSE: 

In response to comments from the April 2019 Development Forum, GIS staff developed a 

new program to make GIS data more readily available to external customers.  These 

customers would primarily be professional service firms working on Board or private 

development projects.  A standard information sharing agreement has been prepared and 

reviewed by legal counsel that complies with the City’s Administrative Policy Regarding 

Open Data adopted by Resolution No. 6003 dated July 22, 2019 (see attached).  The overall 

benefit is to provide convenient, on-demand access to current GIS information.   

 

III. FINANCIAL: 

The program leverages prior investments in technology and staff capabilities.  There are no 

added expenses. 

    

IV. STATUS: 

The program was advertised in early April.  Five (5) firms have signed the standard 

agreement so far. 
 

V. REQUEST AND RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the Board approve the Director to execute two (2) information 

sharing agreements with Summit Engineering, LLC and Gateway Construction, LLC. 

 

 
 

Page 69 of 162



Page 70 of 162



Page 71 of 162



Page 72 of 162



Page 73 of 162



INFORMATION SHARING AGREEMENT

This agreement made this DAY day of MON"|L l, 20YY between the City of Cheyenne,
hereinafter referred to as "CITY," a municipal corporation organized pursuant to the laws of the State of
Wyoming, acting by and through its Board of Public Utilities, hereinafter referred to as "BOpU," and
A++LK/r+ff+{*Mi1, hereinafter referred to as the "USER."

Gq<<oq V G n rtrt "t-oa, LL<.I ' WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the BOPU manages, operates, maintains and controls the municipal water works,
and sanitary sewer system for the CITY.

WHEREAS' the BOPU is the owner of geospatial information within the City of Cheyenne,
Laramie County, Albany County, and Carbon County;

WHEREAS, the BOPU is the steward of and responsible for the control and maintenance of
BOPU geospatial information within the City of Cheyenne, Laramie County, Albany County, and Carbon
County;

WHEREAS, BOPU desires to share geospatial information with the USER for the sole and
exclusive benefit of the USER pursuant to the terms and conditions herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:

1. Purpose:

The purpose of this Agreement is to outline the general terms and conditions of cooperation
between the parties in the overall sharing of certain data and information owned or in the legal
possession ofeach party hereto.

2. Effective Date:

This Agreement shall become effective on the date of signing by all parties. The Agreement shall
not expire.

3. Termination:

Either parfi may terminate this Agreement for any reason, without penalty, upon thirty (30) days'
prior written notice to the other party or upon mutual agreement.

4. Sharing Agreement and Intended Use:

Jle eOfU agrees to provide the USER with access to BOPU geospatial information through the
BOPU's ESRI ATcGIS Online "shared Mapping Application". The USER agrees and undeistands

lh{ any and all digital data, Shared Mapping Application, and imagery creatid by the BOpU, the
CITY or the Cheyenne/Laramie County GIS Cooperative, hereinafter referred to as ..SHARED
INFORMATION"' for use by the USER through the BOPU's ESRI ATcGIS Online Shared
Mapping Application are the property of the BOpU.

Page 74 of 162



5. Constraints on the Use of Shared Information:

a. USER acknowledges that its employees and personnel will have access to confidential and
proprietary SHARED INFORMATION of the BOPU during the term of this Agreement and
agrees not to disclose any SIIARED INFORMATION obtained to any person or entity except
as authorized herein.

b. All SHARED INFORMATION is to be considered confidential and proprietary and,is subject
to the restrictions herein. The USER agrees that no SFIARED INFORMATION will be sold,
given or loaned to any person or entity not a party to this Agreement without the express
written consent of the BOPU.

c. The USER agrees and understands that certain SHARED INFORMATION held by the
BOPU may be subject to state and federal law including, but not limited to, the Wyoming
Public Records Act, WS 16-4-201et seq.

d. The USER agrees and understands that access to SHARED INFORMATION owned by the
BOPU may be denied at any time pursuant to W. S. l6-4-203(b)(vi) or W. S. 1 6-4-203 (dy1v),
as information which might jeopardize public safety or as trade secrets, respectively.

e. All sr{ARED INFORMATION is provided solely for the benefit of the USER and
exclusively for planning purposes. The USER expressly acknowledges and understands that
the SHARED INFORMATION represents estimated location of utility facilities and is not
meant to replace locates or field identification. Any reliance upon, reproduction of, or use of
the shared information will be at the sole and exclusive risk of the usER.

6. Security:

The USER shall employ industry best practices, both technically and procedurally, to protect the
BOPU's SHARED INFORMATION from unauthoizedphysical and electronic access. Methods
and procedures utilized in furtherance of this obligation are subject to review by the BOPU to this
Agreement.

7. Access:

a. Access to SHARED INFORMATION provided hereunder shall be limited to those
employees and staff members with a defined business need for review of the SHARED
INFORMATION.

8.

b. The BOPU agrees to grant one ESRI AToGIS Online username owned and operated by the
USER access to SIIARED INFORMATION.

Notification of Security Breaches :

In_th_e event of any breach or compromise of the security or confidentiality of SHARED
INFORMATION where SHARED INFORMATION was or is reasonably believed to have been
accessed by an unauthorized person or entity, immediate notification shall be provided to the
BOPU and all reasonable action shall be taken to mitigate the security breach.

Page 75 of 162



9. Indemnification:

The USBR to this agreement shall be responsible for any liability arising from its own conduct
and agrees to indemni$r, pay the defense costs of and hold the BOPU harmless from any and all
claims, demands, costs liabilities, losses, expenses and damages (including attorneys' fees, costs,
and expert witnesses' fees) arising out of or in connection with this Agreement that sound in an
intellectual property claim (including but not limited to patent, copyright, trademark, trade name,
or trade secret infringement).

10. No Warranties:

The BOPU makes no representations or warranties, either expressed or implied, with respect to
the accuracy, completeness or appropriateness of the STIARED INFORMATION provided by the
BOPU to the USER for use hereunder.

11. Miscellaneous:

Assignment. The USER hereto may not assign their respective rights, duties and
obligations without the prior written consent of the BOPU.

Severability, Entire Agreement and Amendments. The invalidity in whole or of any
part of this Agreement shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the Agreement.
This written Agreement represents the complete agreement of the parties and shall not be
modified except by an inshument in writing signed by the USER and the BOPU.

c. Governmental/Sovereign Immunity. Neither BOPU nor its agencies/members waive
their Governmental/Sovereign Immunity, as provided by any applicable law including
W.S. $ l-39-101 et seq., by entering into this agreement. Further, the BOPU fully retain
all immunities and defenses provided by law with regard to any action, whether in tort,
contract or any other theory of law, based on this Agreement.

Third Parties The parties do not intend to create in any other individual or entity the
status of third-parfy beneficiary, and this Agreement shall not be construed so as to create
such status. The rights, duties and obligations contained in this Agreement shall operate
only between the parties to the Agreement, and shall inure solely to the benefit of the
parties to this Agreement.

Applicable Law and Venue. The parties mutually understand and agree this Agreement
shall be governed by and interpreted pursuant to the laws of the State of Wyoming. If
any dispute arises between the parties from or concerning this Agreement or the subject
matter hereof any suit or proceeding at law or in equity shall be brought in the Dishict
Court of the State of Wyoming, First Judicial District, sitting at Cheyenne, Wyoming or
the Federal District Court, District of Wyoming. This provision is not intended nor shall
it be construed to waive any party's governmental immunity as provided in this
Agreement.

f. Invalidity. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable by any
court of competent jurisdiction, or if the parties are advised of any such actual or
potential invalidity or unenforceability, such holding, or advice shall not invalidate or
render unenforceable any other provision hereof. It is the express intent ofthe parties the
provisions of this Agreement are fully severable.

a.

b

d

e

Page 76 of 162



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands this o t^J day of
,) r tn<, )020

Signed and delivered in the presence of:

USER:

Go/.rrr*,, Ccrns/rr,r-d'or, L L (,

BOPU:

CITY OF CHEYENNE, WYOMING
BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

By

Title:
Bradley A. Brooks
Director, Board of Public Utilities of the
City of Cheyenne

STATE OF WYOMING

COUNTY OF LARAMIE

Before me, a Notary Public in and for the state and county aforesaid, personally appeared
with whom I am personally acquainted, and who, upon

oath, acknowledged he/she is the Mo.,cv{rnq Ylc-mb<,r of
and ttiat$e/she executed the foregoing instrument

for the ses therein by signing his/her name as such officer.

and official seal at office in the state and county aforesaid, this
of 20&a

aAt"rn C*tl*rld.on ,
Notary fu$tii

My commission expires:

STATE OF WYOMING

COUNTY OF LARAMIE

Before me, a Notary Public in and for the state and county aforesaid, personally appeared
I am personally acquainted, and who, uponwith whom

oath, acknowledged that helshe is the
and that he/she executed the foregoing instrument

purposes therein contained, by signing his/trer name as such officer.

Witness my hand and official seal at office in the state and county aforesaid, this
day of

SS

)
)
)

ss.
)
)
)

for the

My commission expires:
(date)

Notary Public

(date)

STATE OF
WYOMING

NOTARY PU

COUNTYOF
LARAMIE

20

Page 77 of 162



https://cheyennebopu.sharepoint.com/sites/WT-Leadership-Team/Shared Documents/Communications/Board Meetings/2020/BdRpt 200615 - Filter 6 Media.docx 1 

I. PROJECT NAME: FILTER 6 MEDIA  

 

II. GENERAL DESCRIPTION AND PURPOSE: 

This project purchases replacement filter media, 
consisting of 1 foot of sand and 5 feet of anthracite, for 

Filter 6 at the water treatment plant. As part of the 

water treatment plant’s filter and floc tank 
rehabilitation projects, the grout in the underdrain in 

Filter 6 has been inspected/repaired and the epoxy 

coating has been replaced. Staff are ready to order and 

install new filter media.  
 

Once the new media is installed, staff will install the 

weir plates and the filter will be ready to put back in 
service.  

 

III. FINANCIAL:  

The FY 20 Budget includes $196,000 for filter rehabilitations and replacement media in 

account number 199-9220-86063. The rehabilitation was bid in two parts. The first part 

replaces the epoxy coating and was awarded in November 2019. This work was performed by 

Mandros Painting and is completed. The second part purchases filter media. 
 

Description Amount 

Project Budget $ 196,000.00 
Mandros Painting Inc. for epoxy coating replacement (102,862,50) 

Remaining Balance for Filter Media 93,137.50 

 

IV. STATUS: 

The Board published an invitation to bid on the website, which also notifies construction 

companies who subscribe to the Board’s website, advertised on the Wyoming Tribune Eagle 

newspaper and sent e-mails to eight known filter media manufacturers. The Board received 
four bids.  

 

Bid Results 

Supplier City, State Bid  

Kleen Industrial Services  Danville, CA $78,287.40     

Unifilt Corporation Ellwood City, PA $70,099.88  

CarbonFilt LLC Katy, TX $68,224.77  

CarbonFilt LLC - Alternate Venice, FL $66,237.33 * 

Initial Cost Estimate   $ 90,000.00  

 
* Bid included uniformity coefficients for media that did not match bid specifications. 

 

V. REQUEST AND RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board award the Material Acquisition: Filter 6 Media project to 
CarbonFilt LLC in the amount of $68,224.77. 

Page 78 of 162



 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
 
 

  

 To: Mary Guthrie, President 

  Matthew Pope, Secretary 

  John Edwards, Member 

  Allan Cunningham, Member 

 

 From: Kathy Kellner, Human Resource Manager 

             Date:  June 9, 2020 

             Subject: Renew Employee Assistance Program with Aetna.   

 

 

  

The Board provides an Employee Assistance Program through Aetna to all employees and 

persons living in their household.  The current contract with Aetna ends August 31, 2020.  Aetna 

has provided the Board with a renewal quote for a three-year contract ending August 31, 2023 at 

no increase in cost.  The cost will remain at $2.85 per employee per month. 

 

Management is requesting approval to renew with Aetna for another three years beginning 

September 1, 2020.        

 

Thank you.  

Page 79 of 162



Page 80 of 162



Page 81 of 162



Page 82 of 162



Page 83 of 162



Page 84 of 162



Page 85 of 162



Page 86 of 162



Page 87 of 162



Page 88 of 162



https://cheyennebopu.sharepoint.com/sites/WT-Leadership-Team/Shared Documents/Communications/Board Meetings/2020/BdRpt 200615 Hydroelectric Generator Contract 

Award.docx 
1 

I. PROJECT NAME: AWARD SHERARD HYDROELECTRIC GENERATION 

FACILITY PROJECT 

 

II. GENERAL DESCRIPTION AND PURPOSE: 
In 2013, the City of Cheyenne through its Board of Public 

Utilities (BOPU) applied for and received a Drinking Water 

State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Loan from the Wyoming 
Office of State Lands and Investments to design and 

construction of a hydroelectric generation facility at the R.L. 

Sherard Water Treatment Plant. Between 2013 and 2017, 

studies, legal agreements, designations and contracts were 

completed including: 

• Request for proposals for engineering services – 

January 2013 

• Professional Services Agreement for engineering 

services – April 2013 

• Feasability and Economic Analysis – August 2013 

• Power Purchase and Sale Agreement – April 2015 

• Qualifying Conduit Hydropower Facility with the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission – October 2015 

• Interconnection Agreement for Small Generator Facility – June 2017 

• Invitation to Bid for Turbine/Generator Package – August 2017 

• Turbine Purchase and Installation Agreement – April 2018 

 

With the completion of the above, the project has been designed and permits obtained from 
Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality and Laramie County Planning to begin 

construction. In April, an invitation to bid was issued with the intent to award the bid at the 

June 2020 Board Meeting.  

 

III. FINANCIAL:  

The project is funded through Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan #133. The loan 

details include: 

• $4,900,000 principal. 

• 0% interest. 

• 20-year term. 

• 25% principal forgiveness (up to 750,000). 

Two service contracts have been let. They are to:  

1. Wenck Associates for engineering services to perform a feasibility study, design the 

hydroelectric generation facility and perform construction management.  

2. Gilbert Gilkes & Gordon (Gilkes) to construct and install a turbine and generator. 

The status of each of the financial project contracts are summarized below. 

Funding Description Amount 

DWSRF Loan #133 $4,900,000 

 

  

Page 89 of 162



https://cheyennebopu.sharepoint.com/sites/WT-Leadership-Team/Shared Documents/Communications/Board Meetings/2020/BdRpt 200615 Hydroelectric Generator Contract 

Award.docx 
2 

  

Expense Description 

Contract 

Amount 

Paid to 

Date 

Engineering design  $265,438 $247,406 

Engineering construction management $311,433 $60,218 

Turbine construction and commissioning $958,793 $717,507 

Pipeline and building construction and 

turbine installation 

$3,364,336  

Totals $4,900,000 $1,025,131 

DWSRF Loan #133 Principal Forgiveness 750,000  

Remaining Loan Principal 4,150,000  

 

Line items in blue italics are estimated. 

 
IV. STATUS: 

Staff released an invitation to bid with the following: 

• Invitation to bid was issued – April 28, 2020. The invitation to bid was advertised in 

the Wyoming Tribune Eagle, text messages and e-mails were sent to subscribers to the 
City of Cheyenne’s website and e-mails were sent general contractors who had done 

work for the BOPU and/or Wenck Associates in the past. The plans and specifications 

were downloaded from the website by 117 separate people. 

• Online pre-bid meeting held – May 13, 2020. The online meeting had 65 participants 

join the meeting. Of which, several had multiple people attending through one 
computer. 

• Online bid opening – May 29, 2020. Four bids were received. The results of the bids 

are shown below.  

Contractor City, State Base Bid Alt. 1 Alt. 2 Base + Alts 

Velocity 

Constructors, Inc.* 

Englewood, 

CO 
$5,063,906.00    $208,406.00 $47,527.00 $5,319,839.00 

Strobel Energy 

Group^ 
Clarks, NE $5,531,558.69 $191,608.55 $132,086.62 $5,885,253.86 

Hydro 

Construction 

Company, Inc. 

Ft Collins, 

CO 
$6,814,219.00 $171,720.00 $24,000.00 $7,009,939.00 

Gracon LLC 
Lafayette, 

CO 
$7,039,300.00 $0 -$1,250.00 $7,038,050.00 

Engineer’s 

Estimate  

 
$3,084,656.00 $110,835.00 $18,539.00 $3,214,030.00 

 
*Did not submit a bid bond. 

^Did not submit bidder’s list, debarment certificate, or Good Faith Disadvantaged Business 

Enterprise Program documentation. For more information, see the attached bid tabulation. 

 
Wenck Associates engineers and staff investigated and discussed the bid results. Staff 

concluded that the bid results and the interest in the project suggest several factors resulted in 

higher than anticipated costs. These factors include: 

• The invitation to bid was advertised during a very busy bid climate where bidders are 
able to pick and choose projects. 

Page 90 of 162



https://cheyennebopu.sharepoint.com/sites/WT-Leadership-Team/Shared Documents/Communications/Board Meetings/2020/BdRpt 200615 Hydroelectric Generator Contract 

Award.docx 
3 

• A labor shortage in the construction industry is driving up construction and supplier 

costs. 

• Additional electrical construction, added to the project to decrease the risk of arc flash 
at the water treatment plant, added to the cost of the project more than was expected 

(estimated at $730,000). 

 

 
 

The hydroelectric generation project is still expected to provide long-term benefits to the 
BOPU. Over the 25 years of the Power Purchase and Sale Agreement, the hydroelectric 

generator project is expected to generate around $4.5 million in cumulative net income (after 

removing payments for the the existing loan amount of $4.9 million less the $750,000 in 
principal forgiveness and after removing anticipated operations and maintenance costs). The 

facility has an expected life span of 50 years. Staff and Wenck Associate engineers still 

believe the project is beneficial. To address the factors that increased costs in the bids, staff 
and Wenck Associates engineers developed the following plan: 

  

• Rebid the project during a less busy bid climate, around late November. 

• Rebid with the electrical components that were added to reduce arc-flash risk as an 

alternate. 

• Evaluate the bid specifications and look for ways to reduce risk and cost for 

contractors. 

• Identify additional funding sources. 
 

V. REQUEST AND RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board reject all four bids for the Sherard Hydroelectric Generation 
Facility Project and implement the plan described above to continue developing the project. 

 

Location of 

Hydroelectric 

Generation 

Facility 

Page 91 of 162



Bid Opening: May 29th, 2020 at 2:00 pm MST
Location: City of Cheyenne Board of Public Utilities Administration Building Conference Room
Engineer: Wenck Associates, Inc.

A
d

d
e

n
d

a

B
id

 B
o

n
d

S
u

b
-C

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r

Q
u

a
li

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

s

N
o

n
-C

o
ll

u
s

io
n

 A
ff

id
a

v
it

B
id

d
e

rs
 L

is
t

D
e

b
a

rm
e

n
t 

C
e

rt
if

ic
a

te

G
o

o
d

 F
a

it
h

 D
B

E

E
P

A
 F

o
rm

 6
1

0
0

-3

E
P

A
 F

o
rm

 6
1

0
0

-4

S
ig

n
e

d

R
e

s
id

e
n

c
y

 C
e

rt
if

ic
a

te

Base Bid Total

Add-Alternate 1

Bid Total

Add-Alternate 2

Bid Total

Base Bid + Add-

Alt 1 Total

Base Bid + Add-

Alt 2 Total

Summary of All 

Schedules

X X X X X X X X X X $5,063,906.00 $208,406.00 $47,527.00 $5,272,312.00 $5,111,433.00 $5,319,839.00
X X X X X X X X X X X $6,814,219.00 $171,720.00 $24,000.00 $6,985,939.00 $6,838,219.00 $7,009,939.00
X X X X X X X X X X X $7,039,300.00 $0.00 -$1,250.00 $7,039,300.00 $7,038,050.00 $7,038,050.00
X X X X X X $5,531,558.69 $191,608.55 $132,086.62 $5,723,167.24 $5,663,645.31 $5,885,253.86*

$3,084,656 $110,835 $18,539 $3,195,491 $3,103,195 $3,214,030

*Base Bid Total + Add-Alt 1 + Add-Alt 2 does not equal this amount as written on Bid Form

Bid Tabulation

Velocity Constructors

Strobel Energy Group
Gracon

Hydro Construction

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

Contractor

BID TABULATION

PROJECT:    CITY OF CHEYENNE BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES - SHERARD HYDROELECTRIC GENERATION FACILITY

BID NO. 2020WPI01

CITY OF CHEYENNE, WYOMING

Page 92 of 162



I. FY2021 WATER REHAB AND NORTH PRESSURE INTERCONNECT AND 

EXPANSION - AWARD OF DESIGN 

 

II. GENERAL DESCRIPTION AND PURPOSE: 

The FY2021 Water Rehab and North Pressure Zone Interconnect and Expansion Project 

consists of 10 individual improvement locations: 

 

FY2021 Water Rehabs 

▪ 5249 Yellowstone (UniWyo FCU)- replace 8” DIP 

▪ 5230 Yellowstone (Arby’s)- new water main construction 

▪ 6001 Yellowstone (Uncle Charlie’s)- new water main construction 

 

North Pressure Zone Interconnect and Expansion 

▪ Faith Drive- new water main construction 

▪ Gardenia- new water main construction 

▪ Yellowstone (M. Heights PS)- new water main construction 

▪ Dartmouth Lane- new water main construction 

▪ Harvard Lane- new water main construction 

▪ Cherokee Street- new water main construction 

▪ I-25 Interconnect- new water main construction 

 

The above locations for the North Pressure Zone Interconnect and Expansion were selected 

to create loops and improve redundancy in the system.  These improvements will combine 

and expand the existing pump zones on the north side of the City.   

 

III. FINANCIAL: 

No funds were budgeted for this project in FY2020 and the proposed budget for FY2021 

includes total of $3,099,500 for the construction of the North Pump Zone Interconnect and 

Expansion and the FY21 Water Rehabs.   

   

IV. STATUS: 

Proposals were received from AVI, Benchmark, Coffey, Dowl, ECA, HDR, SEH, Trihydro, 

Western Research, WWC, and Zion.  AVI, Dowl, and HDR were short list and interviews 

were conducted the week of May 11, 2020.    Upon Completion of the interviews, AVI was 

the highest ranked firm and BOPU staff began contract negotiations for scope and fee.  A 

more detailed justification memo is attached. 

 

V. REQUEST AND RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the Board award the FY2021 Water Rehab and North Pressure Zone 

Interconnect and Expansion Project Design to AVI, PC in the amount of $154,469.66 and 

approve a transfer in the amount of $160,000 from 199-9220-84011 Buffalo Ridge Booster 

Station to 199-9220-84080 North Pump Zone Interconnect and Expansion. 

 

 

Page 93 of 162



 Board of Public Utilities 
Cheyenne Water and Sewer Departments  

2416 Snyder Ave. 

P.O. Box 1469 

Cheyenne, Wyoming 82003 

(307) 637-6460 

www.cheyennebopu.org 

 

Memo 
 

To: Brad Brooks, P.E. 
From: David Cole, P.E. 
Copy: Frank Strong, P.E. 
Date: June 9, 2020 
Subject: Consultant Justification and Recommendation – FY2021 Water Rehab and North Pressure 

Zone Interconnect and Expansion Project Design  

 

A request for proposals was advertised on March 5th, 2020 for the FY2021 Water Rehab & North Pressure Zone 

Interconnect and Expansion Project.  Eleven proposals were received on April 30th, 2020. The firms submitting included, 

in alphabetical order,: AVI, Benchmark Engineers, Coffey Engineering & Surveying, Dowl, Engineering Consulting Alliance, 

HDR, SEH, Trihydro, Western R&D, WWC Engineering, and Zion Engineering.  Three firms were selected for interviews, 

AVI, Dowl, and HDR.  Interviews were conducted the week of May 11th, 2020.  The selection committee included: Frank 

Strong, Jon Savage, and David Cole.  

Based on the interviews, the selection committee recommended negotiating a scope and fee with AVI.  AVI’s team 

included Inberg Miller for geotechnical investigation.  Justification for the selection committee’s recommendation is as 

follows: 

• Continuity from prior work on water rehabilitation projects, most recently the FY2019 Water Rehabs.  

o AVI understands BOPU’s preferences on plan/ profile drawings which will reduce time spent in review 

and revisions. 

o AVI experienced directional drilling through high conflict utility areas with minimal issues. 

o Inberg Miller has performed past geotechnical work for BOPU rehabs  

• Understanding the challenges in crossing WYDOT ROW.  AVI has already begun coordination and an early 

establishment of correspondence and relationship building with WYDOT and boring contractors. 

• Local presence is vital in having early discussions with landowners to obtain easements for waterlines. 

• Past project performance with AVI has been above average.  They have managed their staff to complete past 

projects on or under budget. 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 94 of 162



1 
 

Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

FY2021 Water Rehabilitation &  

North Pressure Zone Interconnect & Expansion 

 Task 1:  Project Management  
A. Task goals 

1. Meet the budget and schedule constraints. 

a. Advertise the project for construction by January 2021. Tentatively Tuesday Jan. 5, 2021. 

2. Manage scope variations to meet the budget and schedule constraints. 

3. Communicate early and openly about issues impacting the budget, schedule and scope. 

B. FIRM scope 

1. Prepare a Project Management Plan (PMP) describing the project goals, budget, schedule, 
scope, communication protocols, and quality control plan.  

2. Manage FIRM resources to meet the PMP.  
3. Facilitate these meetings: 

a. Kickoff meeting to review the budget, schedule and scope. 
b. Alternatives analysis and selection. 
c. 30% design review. 
d. 60% design review. 
e. 90% design review.   

4. Submit monthly progress reports and invoices to BOPU project manager (PM).  Monthly 
progress reports will include: 
a. Invoice for the prior month.  Include labor costs in terms of hours charged by individual 

and hourly rates.  Include itemized expenses.  Include a cost breakdown for each project 
task. 

b. Cumulative percent complete by Task with a brief narrative of significant scope items 
completed within each Task. 

c. Identify and recommend resolution of budget, schedule or scope issues. 
d. Brief narrative of significant scope items to be completed in the next month. 

5. Review monthly progress report verbally with BOPU PM and discuss the following: 
a. Cumulative actual and earned value costs compared to budget. 
b. Risk log. 
c. Data request log. 

6. Provide quality reviews on all deliverables prior to submission to BOPU. 
7. Engage the contracting community. 

C. BOPU scope: 

1. Review monthly progress reports and invoices, ask questions, and process invoices. 
D. FIRM deliverables  

1. Meeting agendas and meeting minutes. 
2. Project Management Plan. 
3. Monthly invoices and progress reports.  
4. Electronic resource for sharing documents. 

E. Assumptions 

Page 95 of 162



2 
 

1. Project management task contains the total time for project management across all other 
tasks. 

 
 

 Task 2: Data Collection and Review  
A. Task goals 

1. Transfer pertinent information from BOPU to FIRM. 

2. Gather other utility information. 

3. Elevate FIRM’s awareness and understanding of pertinent information.     

B. FIRM scope 

1. Prepare and maintain a data request tracking log. 

2. Request, obtain and review pertinent information from BOPU and all utilities within the 

construction limits. 

C. BOPU scope 

1. Provide the following information and other documents as requested by FIRM: 

a. Record drawings of the infrastructure to be rehabilitated. 

b. Available information from BOPU’s GIS on the rehabilitation areas. 

c. EJCDC front-end construction documents. 

d. Maintenance or conditions records.  

D. FIRM deliverables  
1. Data requests. 
2. Data request tracking log. 

E. Assumptions 
1. Infrastructure segments to be rehabilitated include: 

a. 5249 Yellowstone (UniWyo FCU), replace 8” DIP 
b. 5230 Yellowstone (Arby’s), new construction 
c. 6001 Yellowstone (Uncle Charlie’s), new construction 
d. Faith Drive, new construction 
e. Gardenia, new construction 
f. Yellowstone (M. Heights PS), new construction 
g. Dartmouth Lane, new construction 
h. Harvard Lane, new construction 
i. Cherokee Street, new construction 
j. I-25 Interconnect, new construction 

 Task 3:  Alternatives Analysis and Selection 
A. Task goals 

1. Determine extent of survey, geotechnical, or pot holing work required. 

2. Consider alternative construction methods for each of the segments listed to direct design 

requirements. 

3. Select the best overall method to minimize construction costs based upon the collected data 

during task 2.    

B. FIRM scope 

Page 96 of 162



3 
 

1. Conduct required site surveys. 

2. Conduct required geotechnical investigations.  

3. Identify pot hole locations and submit request to BOPU PM.  Coordinate with BOPU PM to 

be present to observe and measure findings in the field.     

4. Prepare alternative recommendations for each infrastructure segment. 

5. Facilitate a meeting with BOPU Staff to review these recommendations and select the 

alternative(s) to be used for each segment. 

6. Prepare meeting minutes and written summary of selected alternative(s) for each 

infrastructure segment.  

7. Perform Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR) locates at Gardenia and Yellowstone intersection. 

8. Coordinate I-25 bore with WYDOT. 

C. BOPU scope 

1. Review meeting materials and participate in the meeting. 

2. Make decisions on the alternative method(s) to be used for each infrastructure segment. 

3. Provide Potholing of existing utilities including permits and traffic control. 

D. FIRM deliverables  
1. Meeting minutes and summary of selected alternative(s) for each infrastructure segment. 

E. Assumptions 
1. Some infrastructure segments may warrant multiple alternatives in the bidding documents.    

 

 Task 4:  30% Design  
A. Task goals 

1. Deliver 30% construction documents using EJCDC front ends and BOPU provided 

Supplementary Specifications. 

2. Gather and document BOPU staff comments.   

B. FIRM scope 

1. Prepare 30% construction documents including: 

a. Technical specifications table of contents. 

b. 60% draft DEQ design report draft including modeling results from BOPU. 

c. 30% cover sheet for the construction drawings and general notes. 

d. Plan and profile drawings of each infrastructure segment indicating all survey data, 

existing BOPU infrastructure, existing utilities and construction method(s). 

e. Annotate existing utility data in accordance with Standard 38-02 of the American Society 

of Civil Engineers.  

f. Review existing easements, Place on drawings. Prepare any new easements required. 

2. Transmit 30% construction documents electronically to BOPU Staff. 

3. Facilitate a meeting with BOPU staff to review the 30% construction documents.  Gather and 

document comments. 

4. Conduct a utility coordination meeting with all impacted utilities. 

C. BOPU scope 

1. Review meeting materials and participate in the meeting. 

Page 97 of 162



4 
 

2. Make decisions in a timely manner to maintain schedule. 

3. Provide existing Easement documents 

4. Verify upsizing, new segments, etc. in water model and provide results to Firm. 

D. FIRM deliverables 
1. 30% construction documents. 
2. Documented comments on the 30% construction documents.  

E. Assumptions 
1. Standard BOPU specifications and details will be incorporated by reference. 
2. Documents will be delivered in “pdf” format. 
3. Drawing size will be 11x17, scalable to 22x34. 
4. Construction documents include drawings, front end documents and technical 

specifications. 

 

 Task 5:  60% Design  
A. Task goals 

1. Incorporate 30% design comments from BOPU Staff.  

2. Deliver 60% construction documents. 

3. Gather and document BOPU staff comments.   

B. FIRM scope 

1. Prepare 60% construction documents including: 

a. 90% complete technical specifications. 

b. 90% draft DEQ design report 

c. Edits to the drawings cover sheet and general notes. 

d. Edits to the plan and profile drawings. 

e. New infrastructure edits to the plan and profile drawings. 

f. Detail drawings. 

g. Construction Phasing plan. 

h. An opinion of probable construction cost (engineer’s estimate). 

2. Transmit 60% construction documents electronically to BOPU staff. 

3. Facilitate a meeting with BOPU staff to review the 60% construction documents.  Gather and 

document comments. 

C. BOPU scope 

1. Review meeting materials and participate in the meeting. 

2. Perform updates in water model per FIRM request and provide results to FIRM. 

3. Make decisions in a timely manner to maintain schedule. 

D. FIRM deliverables 
1. 60% construction documents. 
2. Documented comments on the 60% construction documents.  

E. Assumptions 
1. Standard BOPU specifications and details will be incorporated by reference. 
2. Documents will be delivered in “pdf” format. 
3. Drawing size will be 11x17, scalable to 22x34. 

Page 98 of 162



5 
 

4. Construction documents include drawings, front end documents and technical 
specifications. 

 Task 6:  90% Design and Bid Ready Construction Documents  
A. Task goals 

1. Incorporate 60% design comments from BOPU Staff.  

2. Deliver 90% construction documents. 

3. Gather and document BOPU staff comments.   

4. Submit to City of Cheyenne for initial Engineering plan review. 

B. FIRM scope 

1. Conduct a utility coordination meeting with all impacted utilities. 

2. Prepare 90% construction documents including: 

a. 90% completed front end documents. 

b. Edits to the DEQ design report. 

c. Edits to the technical specifications. 

d. Edits to the drawings cover sheet and general notes. 

e. Edits to the plan and profile drawings. 

f. Edits to the detail drawings. 

g. Edits to the traffic control plan. 

h. Edits to the opinion of probable construction cost. 

3. Transmit 90% construction documents electronically to BOPU staff. 

4. Facilitate a meeting with BOPU staff to review the 90% construction documents.  Gather and 

document comments. 

5. Incorporate all comments and deliver bid-ready construction documents and the opinion of 

probable construction cost (engineer’s estimate).  

6. Prepare and submit Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) permit application. BOPU 

will perform any additional modeling required by DEQ. 

C. BOPU scope 

1. Review meeting materials and participate in the meeting. 

2. Make decisions in a timely manner to maintain schedule. 

3. Facilitate legal review and approval of front end construction documents. 

D. FIRM deliverables 
1. 90% construction documents. 
2. Documented comments on the 90% construction documents. 
3. Bid-ready construction documents, approved by City of Cheyenne. 
4. Approved DEQ permit. 

E. Assumptions 
1. Easement exhibits and descriptions will be completed and submitted to BOPU by this task 

for negotiation with property owners. 

 Task 7:  Bidding and Contract Award  
A. Task goals 

1. Aim to receive five (5) bids. 

Page 99 of 162



6 
 

2. Select and award the contract at the February 16, 2021 BOPU Board meeting. 

B. FIRM scope 

1. Provide written responses to questions from potential bidders. 

2. Evaluate the bids and offer a recommendation, including opinion of probable work load for 

contractor. 

3. Attend Prebid meeting. 

4. Prepare any addenda required. 

C. BOPU scope 

1. Advertise the project, tentatively 1/5/2021. 

2. Issue addenda on the BOPU website. 

3. Conduct the bid opening. 

4. Evaluate the bids and prepare an award recommendation. 

5. Present the award recommendation at the February 16, 2021 BOPU Board meeting. 

D. FIRM deliverables 
1. Written responses to questions from potential bidders. 
2. Prepare addenda. 

E. BOPU deliverables 
1. Advertisement. 
2. Board recommendation.  

F. Assumptions 
1. None. 

 

 Task 8:  Construction Administration  
A. Task goals 

1. Provide adequate support to prevent construction delays due to review of documents.    

B. FIRM scope 

1. Interpret the construction documents by responding to requests for information (RFI’s) and 

other questions from contractor/BOPU. 

2. Prepare contract document revisions to support significant change orders. 

3. Evaluate contractor proposals.  

4. Attend up to five (5) construction progress meetings. 

5. Provide control points at each site for contractor to perform own contractor construction 

staking. 

C. BOPU scope 

1. Issue contractor notifications for award, substantial completion, final completion, etc. 

2. Review shop drawings. 

3. Conduct weekly construction progress meetings. 

4. Observe and document construction progress. 

5. Issue change orders.  

6. Document field changes in a single set of plans. 

7. Review and approve progress payments. 

Page 100 of 162



7 
 

8. Gather subcontractor lien waivers prior to final payment.  

9. Engage the impacted customers and travelling public. 
a. Issue press releases. 
b. Post door hangers. 

D. FIRM Deliverables  
1. Contract document revisions to support significant change orders. 

E. BOPU Deliverables 
F. Assumptions 

1. FIRM will be engaged to represent the design intent. 
2. BOPU staff will lead the overall and day to day construction administration and observation. 

 

 Task 9:  Closeout 
A. Task goals 

1. Record drawings with design change information for future reference. 

B. FIRM scope 

1. Incorporate field change orders into record drawing and specifications. 

2. Issue project completion notification to DEQ . 

C. BOPU scope 

1. Deliver field change notes gathered during construction. 

D. FIRM deliverables 
1. Record drawings in “pdf” format and 22x34 mylar. 

E. BOPU deliverables 
1. Field change notes gathered during construction 

F. Assumptions 
1. None. 

 
 
 

 

Page 101 of 162



Estimated Sub-totals
Description

Task 1  Project Management
B.1. Prepare a Project Management Plan (PMP) describing the project goals, 

budget, schedule, scope, communication protocols, and quality control plan.
1,032.00$                    

B.2. Manage FIRM resources to meet the PMP. 3,650.00$                    
B.3. Facilitate these meetings: -$                            

B.3.a. Kickoff meeting to review the budget, schedule and scope. 1,100.00$                    
B.3.b. Alternatives analysis and selection. 1,190.00$                    
B.3.c. 30% design review. 1,482.00$                    
B.3.d. 60% design review. 1,482.00$                    
B.3.e. 90% design review. 1,482.00$                    

B.4. Submit monthly progress reports and invoices to BOPU project manager 
(PM).  Monthly progress reports will include:

-$                            

B.4.a. Invoice for the prior month.  Include labor costs in terms of hours charged by 
individual and hourly rates.  Include itemized expenses.  

3,016.00$                    

B.4.b. Cumulative percent complete by Task with a brief narrative of significant 
scope items completed within each Task.

1,448.00$                    

B.4.c. Identify and recommend resolution of budget, schedule or scope issues. 640.00$                       
B.4.d. Brief narrative of significant scope items to be completed in the next month. 640.00$                       

B.5. Review monthly progress report Meeting with BOPU PM. 584.00$                       
B.5.a. Cumulative actual and earned value costs compared to budget. 1,032.00$                    
B.5.b. Risk log. 1,168.00$                    
B.5.c. Data request log. 1,168.00$                    

B.6. Provide quality reviews on all deliverables prior to submission to BOPU. 1,168.00$                    
B.7. Engage the contracting community. 1,168.00$                    

Task 1 Miscellaneous Expenses 150.00$                       
Task 1 TOTAL 23,600.00$                

Task 2  Data Collection and Review
B.1. Prepare and maintain a data request tracking log. 1,156.00$                    
B.2. Request, obtain and review pertinent information from BOPU and all utilities 

within the construction limits.
1,100.00$                    

Task 2 Miscellaneous Expenses 100.00$                    
Task 2 TOTAL 2,356.00$                  

Task 3  Alternatives Analysis and Selection
B.1. Conduct required site surveys. 17,717.00$                  
B.2. Conduct required geotechnical investigations. 16,620.00$                  
B.3. Identify pot hole locations and submit request to BOPU PM.  Coordinate with 

BOPU PM to be present to observe and measure findings in the field.    
3,568.00$                    

B.4. Prepare alternative recommendations for each infrastructure segment. 2,052.00$                    

AVI Fee Estimate for Fiscal Year 2021 Water Rehab & North Pressure 
Zone Interconnect & Expansion

6/1/2020
EXHIBIT B

Task
 Cost Not To Exceed 

Page 102 of 162



B.5. Facilitate a meeting with BOPU Staff to review these recommendations and 
select the alternative(s) to be used for each segment.

1,392.00$                    

B.6. Prepare meeting minutes and written summary of selected alternative(s) for 
each infrastructure segment. 

808.00$                       

B.7. Ground Penetrating Radar utility locates at Gardenia and Yellowstone 3,614.00$                    
B.8. WYDOT coordination for I-25 Bore 2,480.00$                    

Task 3 Miscellaneous Expenses 250.00$                    
Task 3 Total 48,501.00$                
Task 4  30% Design 

B.1. Prepare 30% construction documents including: -$                            
B.1.a. Technical specifications table of contents. 1,908.00$                    
B.1.b. 60% draft DEQ design report draft including modeling results from BOPU. 4,072.00$                    
B.1.c. 30% cover sheet for the construction drawings and general notes. 684.00$                       
B.1.d. Plan and profile drawings of each infrastructure segment indicating all survey 

data, existing BOPU infrastructure, existing utilities and construction 
method(s).

6,804.00$                    

B.1.e. Annotate existing utility data in accordance with Standard 38-02 of the 
American Society of Civil Engineers. 

2,780.00$                    

B.1.f. Review existing easements, Place on drawings. Prepare any new easements 
required.

2,028.00$                    

B.2. Transmit 30% construction documents electronically to BOPU Staff. 662.00$                       
B.3. Facilitate a meeting with BOPU staff to review the 30% construction 

documents.  Gather and document comments.
1,392.00$                    

B.4. Conduct Utility Coordination Meeting with all impacted utilities. 988.00$                       
Task 4 Miscellaneous Expenses 250.00$                    

Task 4 TOTAL 21,568.00$                
Task 5  60% Design 

B.1. Prepare 60% construction documents including: -$                            
B.1.a. 90% complete technical specifications. 808.00$                       
B.1.b. 90% draft DEQ design report. 1,592.00$                    
B.1.c. Edits to the drawings cover sheet and general notes. 494.00$                       
B.1.d. Edits to the plan and profile drawings. 2,444.00$                    
B.1.e. New infrastructure edits to the plan and profile drawings. 2,780.00$                    
B.1.f. Detail drawings. 2,780.00$                    
B.1.g. Construction Phasing Plan. 2,736.00$                    
B.3.h. An opinion of probable construction cost (enginineer's estimate). 2,064.00$                    

B.2. Transmit 60% construction documents electronically to BOPU staff. 696.00$                       
B.3. Facilitate a meeting with BOPU staff to review the 60% construction 

documents.  Gather and document comments.
2,672.00$                    

Task 5 Miscellaneous Expenses 250.00$                    
Task 5 TOTAL 19,316.00$                

Task 6  90% Design and Bid Ready Construction Documents 
B.1. Conduct a utility coordination meeting with all impacted utilities. 1,392.00$                    
B.2. Prepare 90% construction documents including: -$                            

B.2.a. 90% completed front end documents. 920.00$                       
B.2.b. Edits to the DEQ design report. 404.00$                       
B.2.c. Edits to the technical specifications. 808.00$                       
B.2.d. Edits to the drawings cover sheet and general notes. 1,100.00$                    
B.2.e. Edits to the plan and profile drawings. 1,772.00$                    
B.2.f. Edits to the detail drawings. 2,356.00$                    
B.2.g. Edits to the traffic control plan. 1,772.00$                    

Page 103 of 162



B.2.h. Edits to the opinion of probable construction cost. 988.00$                       
B.3. Transmit 90% construction documents electronically to BOPU staff. 695.00$                       
B.4. Facilitate a meeting with BOPU staff to review the 90% construction 

documents.  Gather and document comments.
2,672.00$                    

B.5. Incorporate all comments and deliver bid-ready construction documents and 
the opinion of probable construction cost (engineer’s estimate). 

1,884.00$                    

B.6. Prepare and submit Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) permit 
application. (BOPU performs any modeling required by DEQ).

1,492.00$                    

Task 6 Miscellaneous Expenses 500.00$                    
Task 6 TOTAL 18,755.00$                

Task 7 Bidding and Contract Award
B.1. Provide written responses to questions from potential bidders. 1,212.00$                    
B.2. Evaluate the bids and offer a recommendation. 898.00$                       
B.3. Attend prebid meeting. 988.00$                       
B.4. Prepare any addenda required. 1,840.00$                    

Task 7 Miscellaneous Expenses 150.00$                    
Task 7 TOTAL 5,088.00$                  

Task 8  Construction Administration 
B.1. Interpret the construction documents by responding to requests for 

information (RFI’s) and other questions from contractor/BOPU.
1,492.00$                    

B.2. Prepare contract document revisions to support significant change orders. 1,784.00$                    
B.3. Evaluate contractor proposals. 1,100.00$                    
B.4. Attend up to five (5) construction progress meetings. 2,272.00$                    
B.5. Provide control points at each site for contractor to perform own contractor 

construction staking.
5,461.66$                    

Task 8 Miscellaneous Expenses 250.00$                    
Task 8 TOTAL 12,359.66$                

Task 9  Closeout
B.1. Incorporate field change orders into record drawing and specifications. 1,906.00$                    
B.2. Issue project completion notification to DEQ . 460.00$                       
D.1. Firm Deliverables. Record drawings in "pdf" format and 22x34 mylar. 460.00$                       

Task 9 Miscellaneous Expenses 100.00$                    
Task 9 TOTAL 2,926.00$                  

154,469.66$                TOTAL 

Page 104 of 162



RetainageRelBdMtg
6/9/2020

Board of Public Utilities
Releases of Retainage

Jan 00

   Date 
* Added since previous Board Meeting. Released 

Contract Amount of or to be 
Contractor / Engineer Project Completed Retainage Released

* Plant Moran ERP Project - Consulting Services 142,875.00       13,966.90       18-May-20

HDR City Zone North Transmission Study 168,510.00       16,851.00       20-Apr-20

Hamm Equipment 2018 High Flow Sluice Gates Rehab 159,421.51       15,942.15       19-Feb-20

Daniel R. Houser Inc ERP - Munis Conversion 11,700.00         1,170.00         18-Dec-19

Tyler Technologies ERP - Munis Phase 1 Implementation 388,273.67       12,992.00       18-Dec-19

Mandros Painting, Inc. Filter 8 & Floc Tank 1 653,301.00       65,330.10       25-Nov-19

Burns & McDonnell Southern Sewer Interceptor Main 929,108.31       46,916.04       19-Nov-19

Simon Contractors FY17 Sewer Rehabs 809,187.80       80,918.78       22-Oct-19

Simon Central Wyo Phase One Sthrn Swr Interceptor 11,348,855.91  1,134,885.58  16-Jul-19

HDR Inc Reclaimed Water Reuse Study 138,742.82       13,874.29       21-May-19

Aztec Construction FY18 Manhole Rehabs 189,385.37       18,938.54       16-Apr-19

Aztec Construction FY18 Sewer Rehabs 1,375,937.00    137,593.69     16-Apr-19

Aztec Construction FY18 Water Rehabs 2,291,009.47    229,100.95     26-Mar-19

Mountain View Building Southern Water Main Phase III 10,820,270.96  582,027.09     18-Dec-18

Dowl Southern Wtr Main-PH III 901,374.40       41,655.28       28-Nov-18

Mountain View Building FY18 Well Rehabs-Polo Pivot 105,974.22       10,597.42       12-Nov-18

Aztec Construction Old North Crow Silt Removal 421,227.50       42,122.75       27-Oct-18

Inberg-Miller Engineers DC Swr Trunk/Thomas Heights 24,755.00         2,475.51         18-Sep-18

Inberg-Miller Engineers FY19 Water & Sewer Rehabs 38,765.00         3,876.50         18-Sep-18

AVI North Crow Silt Removal 54,822.00         5,482.22         21-Aug-18

Simon Contractors FY17 Paving Projects 142,404.72       14,240.47       18-Jun-18

Mountain View Building Southern Water Main Phase III 10,494,129.04  500,000.00     21-Jun-18

Plante & Moran ERP Project 137,925.00       13,792.51       17-Apr-18

Mechanical Systems Inc FY17 Wtr Rehabs II-Saddle/dell zone 18 191,457.15       19,145.72       19-Apr-18

Aztec Construction FY17 Water Rehab Project 2,412,418.16    241,241.83     5-Mar-18

Page 1

Page 105 of 162



6/9/2020 Report to the Board
Professional Service Agreements, Contracts, Easements

Change Orders and Amendments
$25,000 or less

   
* Added since previous Board Meeting.

Date CO or New Contract
Explanation Project/Agreements Company Amndmnt $ Amount Amount

*6/3/2020 2019 Water Rehabs AVI Amndmnt #2 $0.00 $195,034.00
Use unused portion of budget to pay for additional drafting services for 2018 Water Rehab as-builts

*5/18/2020 2019 Sewer Rehabs Mechanical Systems Inc. CO #06 $0.00 $2,921,521.56
Use force account for cost increase of $3,634.35 to install plug valve on influent line to Goodman Lift Station.

5/6/2020 2019 Sewer Rehabs Mechanical Systems Inc. CO #05 $0.00 $2,921,521.56
Additional labor & materials to install manhole & pipe deeper than shown on plans, paid with unused bid item.

5/1/2020 Filter 6 & Floc Tank 3 Rehab Mandros Painting Inc. CO #01 $23,600.00 $663,227.08
Cost increase for additional Mortarclad to repair pitted bug holes in concrete walls.

4/13/2020 2019 Sewer Rehabs Mechanical Systems Inc. CO #04 $1,050.43 $2,921,521.56
Cost increase for leak sealing manhole prior to applying epoxy coating.

4/8/2020 2019 Sewer Rehabs Mechanical Systems Inc. CO #03 $21,171.58 $2,920,471.13
Cost increase to cover overage in revegetation

2/24/2020 2019 Sewer Rehabs Mechanical Systems Inc. CO #02 $0.00 $2,899,299.55
Use force account for cost increase of $4,865.08 to chip out manhole base to acheive minimum slope on pipe.

12/17/2019 2020 Water Rehabs Dowl Amndmnt #2 $0.00 $279,335.00
Cost increase to extend Dell Range design alignment for $13,015.00 by using cost savings from 30% design.

11/9/2019 2019 Sewer Rehabs Mechanical Systems Inc. CO #01 $0.00 $2,899,299.55
Use force account for cost increase of $6,726 to upsize two manholes from 48" to 60" diameter.

10/21/2019 2020 Water Rehabs Dowl Amndmnt #1 $8,535.00 $279,335.00
Add fee for additional survey and environmental analysis

10/21/2019 2019 Sewer Rehabs HDR Amndmnt #1 $9,101.25 $189,415.25
Add fee for re-bid services

6/17/2019 2017 Sewer Rehabs Simon Contractors CO #7 ($116,265.50) $809,187.80
Deductive balancing change order

6/17/2019 Phase One Southern Sewer Simon Contractors CO #36 ($138,541.09) $11,348,855.91
Deductive balancing change order

5/23/2019 Phase One Southern Sewer Simon Contractors CO #35 $0.00 $11,487,397.00
Identifying bid items to pay materials for Allison Draw Diversion removal

H:\Projects\Contracts, COrders, Amendments
Page 106 of 162



C:\Users\elamb\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\LVR2SUXX

\20.06.15 Bd Report.doc 

Directors Board Report  

June 15, 2020 
 

I.  Presentations/Tours: 

Conducted a tour of the Sherard Water Treatment Plant for Ashley Miller and Erin Lamb 

on June 5, 2020.  

  

II.  SCWSD Agreements:  Board staff is working with Beth Lance to prepare a draft response to 

the District’s sewer credit request.  The agreements are being reviewed to comprise a list of all 

discrepancies and non-compliance items for the Board’s review.  The Response letter was sent out 

on March 17, 2020 to the District from Beth Lance and as of Tuesday April 14, 2020 we have 

received no response or communication from the District.  Agreement review still in process.  

Beth Lance did receive an e-mail from Curtis Buchhammer on April 28, 2020 acknowledging 

receipt of our letter. Mr. Buchhammer did say he would present to his Board at their May meeting 

and follow up with Beth.  A letter was received from Mr. Buchhammer dated May 14, 2020 

see attached.   

 

III.  BOPU Work Sessions: The fall work session was held on October 30, 2019 from 3pm to 

6pm at the BOPU Administration Building Multipurpose Room.  The session covered Future 

Water Planning Implementation Strategy and was attended by all Board members, management 

team, and Board and City staff.  The work session was a success and the process were educational 

and beneficial for all in attendance.  The organization and preliminary priority of all future water 

supply projects was established and an overview and background behind each project was 

explained.  The Board’s annual Goals & Planning Session is scheduled for Thursday January 30, 

2020 at the Cheyenne Botanic Gardens Building from 8:00 am to 5:00 pm.  The annual meeting 

was a success as the management team received positive comments from staff and Board 

members.  The overall outcome of the meeting was that the Board staff will focus on Employee 

Development, Operational Optimization, and Infrastructure Strategy and Performance over the 

next year.  I think we will plan to skip our spring work session until fall at which time I would like 

to propose discussing water and sewer reserve account amounts, balances, and industry 

recommendations as well as future guidelines on usage.  No Change. 

 

IV.    Project Business Cases and 5-Year Plan:  Met with staff on October 19, 2018, November 

8, 2018, and December 5, 2018 to discuss 3-year plan and outlook for upcoming projects. Project 

reports are being prepared for each major project and final revisions are being made.  The updated 

3-year plan is presented for review in the Administration Division report section for discussion.  

The current 3-year plan will be included in the FY 2020 budget and be updated to look at 5 years 

out.  Staff is working on preparing business cases for each project mentioned in the 3- year 

outlook and will have completed by budget cycle FY2021. Business cases are complete for all 

current and future projects and the 5-year plan has been updated.  Management staff is reviewing 

and meeting to finalize both the business cases and the 5-year plan prior to FY 2021 budget 

preparation. Plan to present to the Board for review at the February 18, 2020 Board meeting prior 

to receiving 2021 budget at March 16, 2020 meeting.  The plan and business cases will continue to 

be modified and updated as the FY2021 budget is finalized and approved at the April 27, 2020 

Special Budget Meeting.  The plan will be used in prioritizing and justifying projects in future 

years.  No Change. 

 

V.  Participate in a weekly conference call every Monday with staff, Plant Moran, and Tyler 

Technologies representatives to discuss the overall ERP software project.  Ongoing. 

Page 107 of 162



C:\Users\elamb\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\LVR2SUXX

\20.06.15 Bd Report.doc 

 

VI.  Participate in COVID-19 meetings with the Mayor and her executive team every Wednesday 

at 1:30 pm to give updates on status for the City and County and any operational issues or 

concerns.  Ongoing.   

 

VII.  Meet with Board management team every Tuesday and Thursday at 8:30 am to discuss 

Covid-19 operational items or issues.  Relay any items from Mayors meetings held on Monday, 

Wednesday, and Friday.  Plan to open BOPU lobby on May 18, 2020 from 9 am to 3 pm Monday 

through Friday for two weeks and then fully open lobby on June 1, 2020 from 9 am to 5 pm.  

Lobby is fully open as of June 1, 2020 for customers paying bills.  Staff is still conducting 

meetings by remote methods and attempting to limit additional public access into the 

building until further notice. 
   

VIII.  Participated in a conference call with staff and consultant Wood Engineering on March 31, 

2020 to discuss selection and award for the AEM Survey Project approval at the April 6, 2020 

Special Board meeting.  AEM flights began on-site the week of May 11, 2020.  AEM flights are 

all complete and an additional 36.63-line kilometers were flown due to unused project funds.  

A total of 636.63-line kilometers were flown.     

 

IX.  Participated in a conference call with staff and Trihydro on March 31, 2020 to work on 

finalizing the scope of work for the Cathodic Protection System Evaluation Project.  Staff plans 

to postpone negotiations with Trihydro until after the first of the year 2021 to monitor 

current economic/revenue uncertainty.   

 

X.  Participated in the Special Board and Budget Review Meeting on April 6, 2020.  The Board 

gave staff recommendations for changes to the proposed FY 2021 Budget to be made prior to the 

April 27, 2020 Special Board Budget Approval Meeting. The staff will give a brief overview at 

the April 20, 2020 Board Meeting to make sure all changes were correctly understood and 

incorporated.  Budget was approved at the April 27, 2020 Special Budget Board meeting.  The 

budget and rate resolutions are now at the City Council for approval per the following schedule: 

 

   Budget ordinance to Mayor’s Office for Agenda – May 6th  Complete. 

 

   Council Meeting – 1st reading (Refer to COW) 6 p.m. – May 11th  Complete. 

 

   Committee of the Whole – 6:00 p.m.  - May 20th  Complete.     

 

  Agenda item – announcement of public hearing  

 

Council Meeting – 2nd reading (Refer to COW) 6 p.m. - May 26th  Changed to June 8, 

2020 @ 6 p.m.  Complete. 

 

  Notice of hearing to Clerk for newspaper 

 

  Notice of hearing published with budget summary 

 

Committee of the Whole – 6:00 p.m. June 3rd   Changed to June 10, 2020 @ 6 p.m.  

Complete. 

 

Page 108 of 162



C:\Users\elamb\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\LVR2SUXX

\20.06.15 Bd Report.doc 

Public Hearing and Council Meeting 3rd reading 6 p.m. – June 8th (Budget must be 

approved within 24 hours of conclusion of public hearing)  

Changed to June 16, 2020 @ 6 p.m.  

Prior to July 1, 2020  Clerk will publish budget ordinance 

 

 

XI.  Participated in the initial kickoff meeting on April 10, 2020 with staff and FCS the consultant 

for the new Rate study.  Ashley is in the process of getting them all the data they have requested.  

Have continued to participate in phone and web meetings with FCS to discuss the 5 to 20-year 

outlook on projects relating to the overall development and structure of fees and rate increases.  

Ongoing.   

   

XII.  Have been working with staff, Elizabeth Lance, and representatives from HollyFrontier 

Refinery to discuss the proposed extension to the existing Administrative Compliance Order 

(ACO) and noncompliance fee changes as well as flow changes.  We have a conference call with 

HollyFrontier on April 15, 2020 to discuss.  The current ACO expires April 25, 2020.  The new 

ACO is an 18-month extension through October 2021 with increased non-compliance penalty fees 

and reduced wastewater daily flows to the BOPU system.  HollyFrontier is to be in full 

compliance by the end of the new 18-month extension.  With the refinery converting operations 

in Cheyenne to renewable diesel production the selenium issue will go away as will the need 

for the ACO. 

 

XIII.  I have completed the preparation of all managers performance appraisals and have 

met individually with each manager.  I will need to meet with Mary Guthrie to discuss how 

the Board would like to conduct my review for July 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020.   

 

XIV.  The attached letter and BOPU Resolution was sent to Council President Dr. Mark 

Rinne on May 26, 2020.  We have received no response from Dr. Rinne to date.  The council 

did adopt a temporary suspension of the current City Resolution 6023 at their June 8, 2020 

Council meeting. 

 

XV.  Participated in a Wyoming Association of Risk Managers (WARM) Board work session 

on June 11, 2020 representing the BOPU. 

Page 109 of 162



Page 110 of 162



Page 111 of 162



Page 112 of 162



Page 113 of 162



Page 114 of 162



Page 115 of 162



Page 116 of 162



Page 117 of 162



Page 118 of 162



Page 119 of 162



Page 120 of 162



Page 121 of 162



Page 122 of 162



Page 123 of 162



Page 124 of 162



Page 125 of 162



Page 126 of 162



Page 127 of 162



Page 128 of 162



Page 129 of 162



For discussion purposes  only Draft-under in house review 

Public Relations Report May 8 – June 5, 2020 

Below are summaries of media releases, customer notifications, tours/presentations and projects. 

Media Releases 

Date Headline Summary 
Distribution Type  

(# of people) 

5/8/20 Water Main Leak 5100 block of Redmond Rd. 

Website; 
Facebook (1,202); 

Twitter;  

5/11/20 Eye in the Sky 

Airborne Electromagnetic Survey will start today (5/11/20) 
looking for long-term groundwater sustainability for 

Cheyenne's drinking water resources. Learn more 
at www.cheyennebopu.org 

Website; 
Facebook (4,196); 

Twitter; 
Instagram 

5/12/20 Sewer Project  

Starting Wednesday, 5/13/20, Bomar Dr. will be closed b/w 
Montclair Dr. & Gardenia Dr. & Palm Springs Ave. & Poulos Dr. 

for a sewer project until 5/21/20, weather permitting. 
Residential access will be accommodated. Thank you for your 

cooperation as we upgrade the sewer system. 

Website; 
Facebook (1,236); 

Twitter; 
Instagram; 

5/13/20 Board Meeting 

On Monday, 5/18 starting at 3 pm the Board of Public Utilities 
will be having a Board meeting. Public participation is 
welcomed and encouraged. Visit www.cheyennebopu.org for 
more information. 

Website; 
Facebook (866); 

Twitter;  

5/14/20 Lobby Reopens 

The Board of Public Utilities' lobby at 2416 Snyder Ave. will 
reopen starting Monday, May 18, 2020. The Board will phase 

the lobby hours May 18th – May 29th: M-F (9:00 am-3:00 pm) 
and June 1st – Future: M-F (9:00 am - 5:00 pm). 

Website; 
Facebook (1,483); 

Twitter; 
Instagram  

5/14/20 
Hydrant Flushing 

Completed 

Annual hydrant flushing has been completed (5/14/20). Thank 
you Cheyenne for your patience during our routine 

maintenance. 💧The Board of Public Utilities. 💦 

Facebook (1,117); 
Twitter; 

Instagram 

5/18/20 Board Meeting 

Reminder that today (5/18) starting at 3 pm the Board of 
Public Utilities (Board) will be having a Board meeting. Public 

participation is welcomed and encouraged. 

Website; 
Facebook (1,110); 
Twitter;  

5/20/20 
Special Board 

meeting 

On Friday, 5/22/20 starting at 3 pm the Board of Public 
Utilities (Board) will be having a special Board meeting. Public 

participation is welcomed and encouraged. Find more 
information at www.cheyennebopu.org. 

Website; 
Facebook (1,256); 

Twitter;  

5/21/20 
Rob Roy Reservoir 

expected to fill  

Rob Roy Reservoir expected to fill to capacity (5/21). People 
near the Douglas Creek area, located in the Medicine Bow 

Range, should expect higher than normal flows in the Douglas 
Creek & area riverways due to runoff from above average 

snowpack this year. http://ow.ly/7feq50zMV1g 

Website; 
Facebook (3,019); 

Twitter; 
Instagram 

5/24/20 Memorial Day 

In observance of Memorial Day, 5/25, the Board of Pubic 
Utilities (2416 Snyder Ave.) will be closed but will respond 

24/7 to water & sewer emergencies @ 307-637-6471. 
Honoring and remembering all who served our great Nation 

today & every day. 
Facebook (1,501); 
Twitter;Instagram  

Page 130 of 162

http://www.cheyennebopu.org/?fbclid=IwAR1LHFrMWBgXq3Uv-bmNk-w2u5X1lQKv_OXsCOY-FXuwo6HD1BdxB9R9dfs
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.cheyennebopu.org%2F%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR0sbTpE7wMpKsDnRzAK7zI5vV0WRotQNaFRWsN8HXNJMpi1SmRABxXEETM&h=AT1YssgGC_YpQh66B2G67C6d6piAlpYHKx_RWqHjGhM-7VokP1VVuSB5CGN7KL5g4WFuf2tLMt5ZP4ewRFqxM8ZhCLlCv79eab36bVPNfxa_S80JM_vdSHwtOYTMM1lBatB7tSFH4brQtoYb2rvIOI1uO9Vx5mYCKJudM5LKPItghy4hJ_dTBa-f96P1ttHHNMpYANSGKDycNG-KWeCVpn7LkdhCYtBChKnMF-oaA6smIyBvLoQP9QscBnFaCfqtfoTE1SYqs3mRy8j6ORijiFH1hJ_cwUg1ZnwG2Ge6893mAtcfXHKFES3o4TsU9pv_G1kbITygaIqK03TkdvvnVsqgryj97CXGp7zyhTOcvAve6wdhSc3UaAfNN7mHrT00m2HmiAhk8ApU2M3NFEnkO-2ykByMT__dTRaA_zv6TaxbMmrgCmy3fEL62Ng5JTZkDauCPetB6YxKXVeyvU6q3zfLE2s3aCFt6RkLXfQYZAivEM8OHmqRijulWkZtkn8B49DzWPNw89SOsYB_rQkaIH7D8qqvbucfmjpQdKQThgtnDFemPQBKCYYsIzrx6JSjkqxQ6YBD5hyA-Gcy3YxLrX--iBapbBUQFCQ-iBPtNoG2i689SIGVLTCung
http://www.cheyennebopu.org/?fbclid=IwAR3pCNdYYNFjNmP2V_kKpch1Jw1B_GX7ndiNx15yxtwmlHv16b_Qe4Rg770
http://ow.ly/7feq50zMV1g?fbclid=IwAR2aigqkEwEt73bYbD18diuR1yWMSvcYF9TKCWLrAWBVfbLwUTIgArBN6-Q


For discussion purposes  only Draft-under in house review 

5/26/20 
Water Main Valve 

Repair 

Starting Wed, 5/27/20, except road closures & lane shifts at 
the intersection of Yellowstone Rd & Western Hills Blvd for a 
water main valve repair until 6/10/20. Detour will be place & 
business access will be accommodated. Thank you for your 

cooperation with our system upgrades. 
Facebook (1,269); 

Twitter;  

5/29/20 
Hog Park Reservoir 

expected to fill  

Hog Park Reservoir expected to fill to capacity (6/1). People 
near the Encampment and Little Snake Rivers should expect 

higher than normal flows in the area due to runoff from 
above average snowpack this year. Visit us 

at www.cheyennebopu.org for more information. 

Website; 
Facebook (1,760); 

Twitter; 
Instagram 

6/2/20 

Do your part to 
prevent sewer 

backups 

Toilet paper is the *ONLY* paper product that breaks down in 
our sewer system. Everything else (wipes, tissues, paper 

towels, feminine hygiene products) has to go in the 
trash. #wipesclogpipes 

Facebook (2,819); 
Twitter; 

Tour/Presentations/Projects 

Date Details 

5/8/20-Future 

Website page creation, style designs, SOP for the website, administration set-up and rules, 
methods for smooth transitions, communications with the City, training workshops; website 
management etc. A new website will be launched June 30, 2020.  

5/12/20 Worked with RMSAWWA to be a panelist in RMSAWWA on working from home.  

5/22/20 
Wyoming Water Association Special Meeting. The annual conference will be converted to a 
series of webinars.  

5/26/20 FEMA training  

6/2/20 LaVA cooperators discussion and objection resolution debriefing.  

6/3/20 Monthly CCR meeting. Discussed funding, permitting requirements and outstanding items.  

6/3/20 
RMSAWWA Communications meeting with potential partnering on a 2-day workforce in Jan/Feb 
2021. 

6/4/20 
Met with US Forest Service and BlueForest on forest resilience bonds and watershed 
management once LaVA is implemented.  

6/5/20 
Met with garden volunteers on a strategies to replant some of the Habitat Hero Demonstration 
Garden winter kill off and methods to improve the buffalo grass demonstration area.  

Future presentation 
6/24/20 

Dena Egenhoff, Matt Buelow and Bruce Dorr will be presenting on Wyoming Water Laws and 
Regulations on June 24, 2020 through the HalfMoon Education group.  

 

  

Page 131 of 162

https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.cheyennebopu.org%2F%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR1Nl2dAHURfzEDqoS8AZ9DnT8bmOytJIPzhDwouzmXtE3FS8pJJR5xrRH8&h=AT2qbukhYB0G66-UswTH1MOjyyywV9Cho9MBn0ZMPKJziUZhsx7tErZoayfqtvlarLjjolEjqIWlNc1Cesad5rg4QdgFYmd5DABydLMwTZxmF4BcrQ7JnjBeytEYbhrIZmjiApqg27h3T7IhyPn-437Vaxl9fdY_8msoNbXkH3BF5XtKI2pK8D-bLhmsjWzQx75Ioa_e-AwKIP6chJPLXhwq_MJLTFiCkfr-VSUlVIhb6AwxOiCXxLFOWg3T32xhaMAOWVdJt02Rkxvh04IDAaaB_T1UMN5N3-nygQObFPV1hLFJFWuHp5gHOjFbAxUoBemk-5V0o9R5r7gBr54K9Azfa916YohzbP9M0HnH-JpFYkH3BhQiMmFlAsy9S9u6NVN5yxLIPzSQ3GOyz45BMP_oIdOPUBo8aHaP8RmsUvv2nIPF8MQghkOAJsDYrEvkjZpYLFuDV2wCXRWKI92V3LdXb08rknW06tVo6_amoH79Tr0-j8QUb_JfjVQZ4B6si24RTTFqx098EWqPvhO1XCCT5uQeLOD1-l3Qszicjb7GN280cjYNo6x9EbkIE3TKZxHInZ_8SyjruxYdE5sruLyIGTihlYriZiuuvvcApCFIEhDudqRrR9UneQ
https://www.facebook.com/hashtag/wipesclogpipes?__eep__=6&source=feed_text&epa=HASHTAG&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARDrqZzD33C9zdguJVGjlVRYbxButkGIG2CEC3pjzcvaJvY1drghMnZOMXppb9uBL4-FXZ6eKIf8aPCijagCT6rnSAuqn_aCd1fNQQ4oJ7ArDDEar1670dPENkkRrn5_w-Ek6g_QWm_fXSOtUF6b47N-1_1nEKISRo6QNfeSDeT_018Io591U0wrvZz5zOjYr66dOX8umQd10R78bOItE6hYdZJ8b1qj_VbSYgwpvVtl7FqrAfhAjZWT_zStrAcsmvL-WUeAmTjAEKkGDWHuor74MpS-BOW8cyZf0qFDlyeOkz8O_olCinZtWLIHdZRezVHAx3OgFNJLb1jRKLrm&__tn__=%2ANK-R


For discussion purposes  only Draft-under in house review 

 

Google Analytics 
 

 

 

 

Page 132 of 162



For discussion purposes  only Draft-under in house review 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 133 of 162



For discussion purposes  only Draft-under in house review 

  

Page 134 of 162



 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

 35,000

 40,000
O

ct
-1

9

N
o

v-
1

9

D
ec

-1
9

Ja
n

-2
0

Fe
b

-2
0

M
ar

-2
0

A
p

r-
2

0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n

-2
0

Ju
l-

2
0

A
u

g-
2

0

Se
p

-2
0

O
ct

-2
0

N
o

v-
2

0

D
ec

-2
0

Ja
n

-2
1

Fe
b

-2
1

M
ar

-2
1

A
p

r-
2

1

A
cr

e
-F

e
et

 R
e

se
rv

o
ir

 S
to

ra
ge

End of Month

Projected Reservoir Levels through Spring 2021
Assumptions: 14,500 acre-feet of consumption, normal stream flows

Full Capacity

Mild Drought

Moderate Drought

Severe Drought

Extreme Drought

Red Line=Projected Storage
Dotted Line =
Past Reservoir Storage (Averages from 2010-2019)

Dashed Line = 
Drought Years Reservoir Storage (Oct 2001-April 2003)

Blue Line=Reservoir Storage October 2019-February 2020
2001

2002

2003

Page 135 of 162



2019-2020 Snow Water Equivalence (SWE)
For drainages in Cheyenne's Water System

0

5

10

15

20

25

Se
p

 1
9

O
ct 1

9

N
o

v 1
9

D
e

c 1
9

Jan
 2

0

Fe
b

 2
0

M
ar 2

0

A
p

r 2
0

M
ay 2

0

Ju
n

 2
0

Ju
l 2

0

In
ch

es
 o

f 
w

at
er

 in
 s

n
o

w
 p

ac
k

Beginning of Month

Average SWE for Douglas Creek Drainage

Current Year Average SWE
30 Year Average SWE
Current Year Cinnabar Park SnoTel

145% for 
Cinnabar
only

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Sep
 1

9

O
ct 1

9

N
o

v 1
9

D
ec 1

9

Jan
 2

0

Feb
 2

0

M
ar 2

0

A
p

r 2
0

M
ay 2

0

Ju
n

 2
0

Ju
l 2

0

In
ch

es
 o

f 
w

at
er

 in
 s

n
o

w
 p

ac
k

Beginning of Month

Average SWE for Little Snake Drainage

Current Year Average SWE
30 Year Average SWE
Current Year Little Snake River Snotel

0% for 
Little Snake 
River only

20%

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Se
p

 1
9

O
ct 1

9

N
o

v 1
9

D
e

c 1
9

Jan
 2

0

Fe
b

 2
0

M
ar 2

0

A
p

r 2
0

M
ay 2

0

Ju
n

 2
0

Ju
l 2

0

In
ch

es
 o

f 
w

at
er

 in
 s

n
o

w
 p

ac
k

Beginning of Month

Average SWE for Crow Creek Drainage

Current Year Average SWE
30 Year Average SWE
Current Year Crow Creek SnoTel

0% for 
Crow Creek 
only

0%

48%

C:\Users\degenhoff\OneDrive for Business\Board\Board Meetings\2020 Board Packet\20200605_Snow pack model.xlsx

Page 136 of 162



 

Short-Term  

Water Forecast  

2.5-MONTH OUTLOOK FOR TEMPERATURES 

 
 

2.5-MONTH OUTLOOK FOR PRECIPATION  

 

CURRENT DROUGHT MONITOR  

 

NLDAS SOIL MOISTURE RANKING PERCENTILE 

 
Soil moistures estimates based on anomalies from 
precipitation and temperature data (1931-present). Soil 
moisture provides early warning of drought/floods, 
groundwater recharge and surface run-off availability.  

 

 

Page 137 of 162



EVPORATIVE DEMENDA DROUGHT INDEX (EDDI) 
EDDI provides early warming for droughts by 
looking at the atmospheric evaporative 
demand (E0) or “the thirst of the 
atmosphere”. EDDI captures water stress 
signals from weekly to monthly timescales .  

EDDI 1-MONTH  

 

EDDI 2-MONTH 

 

EDDI 3-MONTH 

 

EDDI 4 -MONTH 

 
 

Page 138 of 162



 

1 
 

BOARD REPORT 
ENGINEERING AND WATER RESOURCES DIVISION  

 June 2020 

 

1. Development    
a. Active development projects are summarized in Table 1 below.  Changes from May include:   

i. Black Hills Energy and Microsoft CY07 are complete. 
ii. Allison Draw, Harmony Valley Offsite Sanitary Sewer, Hawk’s Point Senior Living and 

Mead Lumber Utility Improvements are all new projects. 
 

Table 1 – Development Projects Summary 
 

Count  Project Name  Type  Comments  Status  

1  Allison Draw   
South Interceptor Sewer  

  Sewer Main Extension  
  

Design  

2  Blue Federal Credit Union 
Headquarters  

Commercial   29,680 sq. ft. bldg.  Construction  

3  Christensen Park  Residential  
  

18 Twin homes  Design  

4  East High School New 
Pool  

Commercial  New Pool  Design  

5  Harmony Valley   Residential  
 Multi-Family  

  Design  

6  Harmony Valley Offsite 
Sanitary Sewer at College 

Drive  

  Sewer Main Extension  Design   

7  Hawk’s Point  
Senior Living   

Multi-Family  56 units  Design  
  

8  McDonald’s   Commercial  4,365 sq. ft. bldg.  Construction  

9  Mead Lumber Utility 
Improvements  

Commercial     Construction  

10  Saddle Ridge 13 Filing  Residential                113 Lots   Construction  

11  Spradley Barr Toyota 
Sprinklers   

Commercial  Fire Sprinkler line  Design  

12  Sweet Grass Phase 2  Commercial   20.5 acers  Design  

13  Tube Bending 
Manufacturing  

Commercial  17,133 sq. ft. bldg.  
  

Design  

14  Whitney Road   Commercial  Sewer Main Extension  Construction  

15  Willow Heights  
  

Single Family 
Residential  

  

15 Lots  
  

Design   

 
 

2.    Capital/Consultant Projects 

a. New Projects – given the pandemic and the recent announcement by Holly Frontier, we are 
scrutinizing all new project starts.  Most recently, we decided to postpone starting the 
Cathodic System Evaluation project until the spring of calendar 2021.    

b. Active Project Review - see the attached list for a dashboard view of all active projects.  
c. All Projects Under Contract - overall progress for capital/consultant projects under contract 

are shown in Figure 1 below.           

Page 139 of 162



 

2 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Figure 1 – Progress on All Capital/Consultant Projects 

 
 
 

3. Operations     
a. GIS information sharing program – processing two more agreements in this board meeting.  

The total number of agreements processed will be 7. 
b. Asset Management Initiative – GIS and Capital Projects staff are now actively engaged at 

some level with the four largest operating units including O&M, Water Reclamation, Water 
Treatment and Source of Supply.  GIS staff are delivering tailored assignment/data collection 
tools and the training and support to implement these applications.  There is a growing 
commitment to use these resources and continue optimizing operations.  Figure 2 shows 
operating unit progress in the Hats for Stats award program.      
 

  

Page 140 of 162



 

3 
 

Figure 2 – Hats for Stats Progress 

 
 

 
i. O&M – Staff have been using the Workforce and Collection applications for two (2) 

months.  The Workforce application assigns work to crews and allows them to self-
manage their productivity and response to prioritized assignments.  The Collector 
application is used to document the work being completed.   

ii. Source of Supply (SOS) (Surface and Wells) – Next to the O&M Collection crews, the 
Surface Water crews are among the most advanced operating units in using tailored 
data collection application to inventory assets, assess condition and document 
maintenance work completed.  They have completed the Hats for Stats requirements 
and will be receiving their hats in the next week or so.  Similar data collection 
applications are being developed for the Groundwater crews.  

iii. Water Reclamation – Staff are implementing a phased approach.  The first phase is to 
inventory the headworks and pretreatment systems at both reclamation plants.  The 
second phase will include primary clarification through secondary treatment.  A web 
and graphically based data collection product was developed specific to the 
reclamation plants.  Reclamation staff are trained and actively inventorying 
information.  The collection product for the second phase is being developed for 
implementation by late summer.  

iv. Water Treatment – GIS staff are in the early stage of designing the data collection 
application.   Water Treatment staff will use a phased approach as well.  The first 
phase will be to inventory the pressure reducing and chemical mixing vaults. 
Subsequent phases will add chemical injection systems and treatment processes. 

c. Runoff - long-term weather forecast is calling for warmer and drier than normal conditions 
due to La Nina.   

i. Crow Creek drainage – runoff from the snowpack has ended.  Water is being 
conveyed from Rob Roy via Lake Owen to maintain Crystal and Granite (targeting 
95% full) in anticipation of warmer and drier weather conditions.   

ii. Lake Owen and Rob Roy – Rob Roy filled 5-21-20.  Flushing flow commitments from 
Rob Roy into Douglas Creek have been satisfied.  Rob Roy is expected to continue 
spilling for several weeks. 

iii. Hog Park – filled 5-30-20.  All but a few of the smaller collection intakes were closed 
on 6-3-20.   On 6-7-20, all the flushing flows for the Little Snake drainage were 
satisfied.  Hog Park is expected to continue spilling for a couple of weeks. 

d. Coal Bed Methane Produced Water – participating in a series of conference calls with 
consultants, well operator, Governor’s office, State Engineer’s Office, a Legislator and one 
other utility exploring the use of produced water from two coal bed methane operations.  

 
 

Page 141 of 162



Schedule Legend:

Updated:

Project Name Project Narrative Comments

M
ay

Jun

Jul

Risk Assessment and ERP

EPA mandate to assess the risk from malevolent acts and natural hazards; resileience of infrastructure and 
source water; monitoring practices; financial infrastructure; use, storage, and handling of chemicals; and 
operation/mainteance of the system. After completion of risk/resilience assessment, emergency action plan 
must include stratgies to improve risk resilience. 

Work Session to be scheduled for June; completing water asset threats Y Y Y

Rate Study
Study to evaluate current rate structure to provide recommendation for future rates so required capital projects 
are funded.  System development and other fees will also be evaluated.  

Pending final information requests from IT to be submitted by June 1; Revenue Analysis 
Meeting should happen late June

Y Y Y

Fiber DC to CC
Construct a fiber optic communication line between Dry Creek and Crow Creek Water Reclamation Facilities.  The 
fiber optic line will increase connectivity speed and reliability of the Dry Creek plant. 

Contractor is staking alignment to begin conduit installation. C C C

SOS Cathodic System Evaluation

Assess operation, maintenance and reamining useful life of 21 cathodic protection systems (prevent failure of 
iron piping systems).  Report recommendations to operate and mainatin cathodic protection system most 
effectively. 

Negotiating scope and fee for presentation to June Board meeting S S Y

Cheyenne Municipal Storage
WWDC Level 1 Study to evaluate the purpose and need of additional storage or supply to support future growth 
of Cheyenne. Study also evaluates condition and risk of existing infrastructure. 

Final report due in May Y X

Water Rights Evaluation
Support future growth and resilience by developing a water rights management plan identifying water right 
improvement opportunities. 

Progressing Y Y Y

SCADA Rehabs RTUs

SCADA infrastructure to communicate onsite data from SOS, distribution, and collection sites to central system is 
no longer supported by the manufacurer and is considered obsolete.  Project will upgrade RTUs to modern 
technology. 

Detailed schedules for two options on the RTU upgrades have been created.  Option one-
inhouse planning and inhouse construction.  Option two, inhouse design, outside 
construction. First RTU Test panel, cell modem based, will be finished by June 30.  Funds 
to be carried over from FY20.  Schedule based on option one.

P p p

SCADA Rehabs PLCs

SCADA infrastructure to control plants and record data  to central system is approaching end of support by 
manufacturer.  Project will upgrade PLCs to modern technology. 

PLC replacement schedule completed, schedule has slipped.  Plan is to do RFP and design, 
then evaluate available funds for construction in lieu of project delay for in house design 
and construction.  Schedule based on completing project in FY21.

p p s

Happy Jack Meter Rehab Replace existing electromagnetic flow meter with new unit. On hold p S S

Dam Safety Evaluation Inspection of select BOPU dams by licensced professional engineers with reporting.
Final reports delivered (2019), but need to be distributed.  NNC spillway eval-waiting on 
consultants report.

y P p

Development Projects
Final stages of Standard spec and detail review.  Anticipate public review comment period 
end of June (advertise end of June).  Upsize 8" to 12" main Harmony Valley. 

26th Street Ph. II
City is installing storm sewer in 26th Street to address drainage issues near the Hershcler Building.  BOPU portion 
of project includes upsizing water main from 4" to 12" to improve fire protection and replacing aging sewer main. 

Discuss potential contamination impact to design with AVI.  Request to City that BOPU be 
added to meetings with AVI. No invoice to date. 60% Design late. 

D D D

Christensen Road
BOPU installing casings under railroad and road intersections to prep for future water main installation.  
Concurrent installation during City project saves overall cost of infrastructure. 

Casings are installed and GPS'd.  City staff has made comments of wanting reimbursement 
for water line casings.  BOPU staff has pushed back that those costs were included in the 
6th penny tax vote language.

C C C

Evers Blvd Rehab BOPU rehab of water and sewer infrastructure while City improves storm sewer to alleviate drainage issues. Water and sewer work should be complete by August. C C C

FY19 Sewer Rehabs
Rehabilitation of aging sewer infrastructure. 

Lining company will be back on June 8th to complete lining work.  Various manholes are 
being replaced.  Goodman LS still needs to be rehabilitated.  Contractor experienced some 
delays due to design errors.  I expect a request for more time.

C C X

FY20 Sewer Rehabs
Rehabilitation of aging sewer infrastructure.

SEH experienced a PM staff change.  90% plans are in for City review.  EE is over 
construction budget, we are reducing scope on Linden Way.  Intend to bid in January. 

D D D

FY19 Water Rehabs Rehabilitation of aging water infrastructure. Contractor is a few days behind substantial completion.  Working on punch list items. C X X

FY20 Water Rehabs Rehabilitation of aging water infrastructure. Contracts are being reviewed for signature.  Construction to begin soon! B C C

Prairie Ave Frontier BOPU rehab of water and sewer infrastructure to align with redesign of roundabout intersection. 
Will be rebid.  The new bid opening will be mid-June.  Rebid documents incorporate 
previous addenda.

B B C

Allison Draw South Interceptor

Public private partnership to provide sewer service to Harmony Valley development while also creating sewer 
infrastrcuture to serve future developments south of College Drive. Project includes consruction of sewer 
interceptor along Allison Draw corridor from LCCC to College and Allison Dr intersection. 

Engineer has provided 60% plans D D B

6/3/2020

Design (D)
Bid (B)

Construction (C)
Close out (X)

Planning (P)
Selection (S)

Study (Y)

CURRENT MONTH PROJECT SNAPSHOT

Active Project Review

Page 142 of 162



Schedule Legend:

Updated:

Project Name Project Narrative Comments

M
ay

Jun

Jul

6/3/2020

Design (D)
Bid (B)

Construction (C)
Close out (X)

Planning (P)
Selection (S)

Study (Y)

CURRENT MONTH PROJECT SNAPSHOT

Active Project Review

I&I Investigation
BOPU staff is utlizing newly purchased Flodars to conduction an in house study to identify infiltatoin and inflow 
into the collection system.

We have resumed the investigation Y Y Y

North City Improvements

Rehab of Roundtop Tank and Buffalo Ridge Pump Station were reallocated to construct an elevated tank at the 
Buffalo Ridge Tank site, which is a simpler, more reliable solution than the existing ground level tank. Fewer 
pressure transients should lower the number of main breaks in the City North Pressure Zone.  Remaining capacity 
increases from 490 to 4900 homes. 

RFP advertised May 28.  Expedited schedule required for August award. RFP includes 
goals/risks from multiple departments.  

P P S

FY21 Water Rehabs Rehabilitation of aging water infrastructure. Combined with north PZ interconnect S S D

North PZ Interconnect

Design and construction of water mains in the pump zones north of Storey Blvd.  The new mains create 
connections between zones that allow more reliable service from fewer pump stations.  The new pump zone 
boundaries also allow higher level of service with future elevated tank.  Design/construction contracts will be 
combined with FY21 Water Rehabs for efficiency. 

Negotiating with AVI for design scope and fee.  Anticipated to go before June board 
meeting.

S S D

CC Interceptor Capacity
Study to evaluate options for extending capacity in the Crow Creek sewer interceptor.  Options include parallel 
main to existing, upsizing existing, or constructing third wastewater reclamation facility on west side of town. 

Funding dependent on FY21 budget approval in June.  P

DCWRF Dewatering
Replace existing centrifuges with screw presses to improve process reliability and biosolids quality. 

Procurement contract review w/ target NTP June 1.  Delay impacts contract specifics. 
Reviewed intial HVAC design - potential value add carbon filter in electrical room. 

B D D

DCWRF Headwork Gates

Temporary barriers are currently used to segrate basins when maintenance is needed on headworks screw 
pumps.  Installaion of headgates provide more reliable segragation of screw pump basins so work can be 
performed safely. 

Need to package this for review so we can put it out to bid. D B B

1° Digester Cleaning Clean digester to improve performance and quality. 
Scope reviewed by staff, working with Bryce, David, Robert on getting completed bid 
document together

P P B

Local Limits Study Study to determine appropriate industrial discharge limits. 
Curt sent informal EPA draft for review. Once reviewed by staff, a copy will be sent to Al 
Garcia with Region 8 EPA

Y X

FY20 Filter Rehab
Rehabilitation of aging filter at Sherard Water Treatment Plant.  Projects include resurfacing filter and replacing 
filter media. 

Commencing close out. C X X

FY20 Flocc Rehab
Rehabilitation of aging flocc bain at Sherard Water Treatment Plant.  Projects include resurfacing floc basin and 
replacing mixing equipment. 

Various punch list items incomplete.  Commencing close out. C X X

Federal Pipeline and PS

When Round Top Tank is offline, Federal Wellfield becomes disconnected from distribution system.  Relocation 
of chlorination facilities at Round Top or conveyance to King II is required.  Conveyance to King II is preferred so 
groundwater is counted in blend ratio. 

Delayed until fall. 

SW/GW Blending

Determine the highest surface water to groundwater blend ratio possible that does not increase corrosion 
(release of lead/copper) in distribution system.  Higher ratio allows existing groundwater supply to blend with 
more surface water, increasing total firm yield.

Starting summer bench top analyses. Y Y X

Sherard Filter Rerate

The water treatment plant is currently the pinch point for system throughput.  Run tests to show filters can pass 
more water through the plant with no impact to water quality in order to delay capital expenses on plant 
expansions.  Filter rerate needs WDEQ and likely EPA Region 8 approval. 

Have resumed filter rerate tests. Expanding some analyses to include settled water 
quality.

Y Y Y

Hydroelectric Generator

Energy in form of hydraulic head is currently wasted at the pressure reducing valves at the Sherard Water 
Treatment Plant.  The Hydroelectric Generator will convert this hydruaulic energy into electrical energy to be 
used at the plant or sold back to the grid. 

Bid opening on Friday. B B C

Page 143 of 162



M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 To: Mary Guthrie, President 
  Matthew Pope, Secretary 

  John Edwards, Member 

  Allan Cunningham, Member 

 

 From: Kathy Kellner, Human Resource Manager 

              Date: June 9, 2020 

             Subject: Human Resource Update 

 

HR Projects In Progress 

• Payroll and Human Resource Conversion to Tyler.  

• Review and update employee personnel rules/handbook.  Beth Lance and Kathy Kellner will 

continue to work on handbook until meetings can be scheduled. 

• Savings/Loss Analysis on Early Retirement Offer 

• Open Enrollment for employee benefits ends June 19, 2020. 

 

Performance Management 

• Management is continuing follow-up conversations with supervisors to improve performance 

management system.   

 

Group Insurances/NOVO Benefits 

• No Updates 

 

Employees Ending Employment 

•   Wastewater Quality Control Analyst, Wastewater/Water Treatment Divisions, effective July 

 3, 2020.  

•   Lead Customer Service Representative, Administration Division, effective June 4, 2020. 

•   O&M Technician, Operations & Maintenance Division, effective, effective April 28, 2020   

 

New Employees 

• Lloyd Skutt, Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator, Water Reclamation Division, effective 

April 27, 2020. 

• Hayden Winges,Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator, Water Reclamation Division, 

effective June 4, 2020. 

 

Internal Personnel Changes 

• Erin Clapp, Customer Service Representative has been promoted to Lead Customer Service 

Representative effective June 1, 2020.   

 

Position Openings/Actively Recruiting   

• None 

 

Newsletter 

• June “Water Blotter” (see attachment). 

 

Win with Wellness Program   

Page 144 of 162



• Wellness Committee:  Rocio Tripp, Kandis Schuessler, Kathy Kellner, Chris Russell, Linda 

Gunter, Nathaniel Kaufhold, Kellie Grady and Diana Madvig. 

• Committee will begin working on FY21 Wellness Program. 

 

Training and Development 

• All on-site training classes have been canceled and will be rescheduled. 

 

Upcoming Events  

• Quarterly Employee Meeting, July 9, 2020 – Employee Luncheon.   

Page 145 of 162



Lloyd Skutt, Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator, Water Reclamation. Lloyd 

served in the United States Air Force and retired after 23 years. He was previously 

with DISH Network for 13 Years and was laid off due to COVID 19 along with 1100 

other people. Lloyd is married with 2 boys that are fully grown and on their own 

now. Lloyd has many hobbies, which includes some of the following: hunting, 

fishing & canning.  He also raises bees and collects honey.  Lloyd lives in Burns, 

Wyoming on 40 acres and is always planting and watering trees.  Throughout the 

summer, he makes homemade Rhubarb/Strawberry jelly from my garden. He is 

also a proud member of the Cheyenne Chapter of Hunting with Heroes. Hunting 

with Heroes is an organization that offers Wyoming hunts for any Vet that is 50 

percent or more disabled. Last year, Hunting with Heroes provided Antelope hunts 

for 17 disabled Vets along with an Elk Hunt for a Vet that was missing his 

legs. Thank you for your service Lloyd & welcome to BOPU! 

 

            
           

BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES NEWSLETTER                                                 JUNE 2020 
 

 

 

                  

In This Issue: 

▪ Leadership Ladder 

▪ Welcome New 

Employees 

▪ Amazing/Best Team 

▪ Congrats Grad 

▪ Safety Tailgate 

▪ Construction Corner 

▪ Health Beat 

▪ Birthdays/Anniversary 

▪ Photos of the month 

 

 

 

 

Leadership Ladder                                                                              
Director: Brad Brooks 

 

 

 

 

Page 146 of 162



 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Water Reclamation: Congratulations to Noah O’Brien for 

passing his Level 1 Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator 

examination and Jacob Westra for passing his Level 3 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator examination as 

well!  

 

A special, “Thank you,” message to SOS from Nick Dennis and the 

Water Treatment team.  

SOS has been helping us a lot with excavations as that is  what 

they do more often than us. They helped us repair the 30" raw 

line feeding the plant right before our PRV. They also ran the 

crane for us and helped us get closer to getting one of our filters 

back online after the rehab project on it. We did in 2 days what 

has taken us over a week in the past.  

On May 7, 2020, we had a metal bracket that was stainless steel, 

break on our sludge removal. None of my guys weld more than 

maybe once a year, so we called out to dry creek, as I know Ryan 

Henderson welds a lot out there, and asked Randy if we could 

borrow one of his guys for a welding project. Ryan welded it up in 

an hour. A few years ago we would have had to take it down to a 

welding shop and have paid a lot.  

I would like to take the time to recognize the helping hand 

because in a lot of our meetings we hear about "breaking down 

the silos" and I have seen it a little, but this was above and 

beyond. I thought it was pretty awesome to see how willing the 

other two crews were to help us in a time where we are battling a 

lot of tasks that we don’t usually see.  

Thank you.  

 

Page 147 of 162



      

   

 

CONGRATULATIONS to Kevarra Bassett! Kevarra is Clint Bassett’s 

daughter who is graduating from South High School. She will attend 

Central Wyoming College this fall and is studying geographic information 

systems with the goal of continuing through graduate studies in 

atmospheric sciences.  

 

Page 148 of 162



As the world reopens, we must still protect our most valuable asset . . . YOU! 

 

As many of our favorite activities and establishments start to reopen, the BOPU Safety Committee would like to remind 

everyone that social distancing is still very critical. We are an essential part of this community. Without your hard work and 

dedication, the Board of Public Utilities would not be able to provide the City of Cheyenne with the necessary water and sewer 

services. Below are a few tips and excerpts from the CDC to protect you and your family during these trying times.     

 

Maintain safe behavioral practices 

 

We have all had to make significant behavioral changes to reduce the spread of COVID-19. To reopen 
America, we will need to continue these practices: 

• Social distancing (specifically, staying 6 feet away from others when you must go into a shared space) 

• Frequently washing hands or use alcohol-based (at least 60% alcohol) hand sanitizer when soap and water are not 
available 

• Wearing cloth face coverings 

• Avoiding touching eyes, nose, and mouth 

• Staying home when sick 

• Cleaning and disinfecting frequently touched objects and surfaces 
 

It’s important to continue to follow federal, state, tribal, territorial, and local guidance for reopening America. 
Check this resource for updates on COVID-19. This will help you change your plan when situations are 
updated. 

 

                                                A few important reminders about Coronaviruses and reducing the risk of exposure 
 
 

• Coronaviruses on surfaces and objects naturally die within hours to days. Warmer temperatures and exposure to 

sunlight will reduce the time the virus survives on surfaces and objects. 

• Normal routine cleaning with soap and water removes germs and dirt from surfaces. It lowers the risk of spreading 

COVID-19 infection. 

• Disinfectants kill germs on surfaces. By killing germs on a surface after cleaning, you can further lower the risk of 

spreading infection. EPA-approved disinfectants are an important part of reducing the risk of exposure to COVID-19. If 

disinfectants on this list are in short supply, alternative disinfectants can be used (for example, 1/3 cup of bleach added 

to 1 gallon of water, or 70% alcohol solutions).  Bleach solutions will be effective for disinfection up to 24 hours. 

• Store and use disinfectants in a responsible and appropriate manner according to the label.  Do not mix bleach or other 

cleaning and disinfection products together–this can cause fumes that may be very dangerous to breathe in. Keep all 

disinfectants out of the reach of children. 

• Do not overuse or stockpile disinfectants or other supplies.  This can result in shortages of appropriate products for 

others to use in critical situations. 

• Always wear gloves appropriate for the chemicals being used when you are cleaning and disinfecting. Additional 

personal protective equipment (PPE) may be needed based on setting and product. For more information, see CDC’s 

website on Cleaning and Disinfection for Community Facilities. 

• Practice social distancing, wear facial coverings, and follow proper prevention hygiene, such as washing your hands 

frequently and using alcohol-based (at least 60% alcohol) hand sanitizer when soap and water are not available. 

 

For the full article from the CDC, please visit: https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/reopen-guidance.html 

Page 149 of 162

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/reopen-guidance.html


  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 150 of 162



 

  

  

                             

             

    Open Enrollment  
     Open Enrollment will run from May 26, 2020 through June 19, 2020.  

 

 

Greeting Team, 

It is that time of year, Open Enrollment has arrived.  

Open enrollment is a time each year to enroll or make changes to your current benefit elections. 

Health Insurance News: Blue Cross Blue Shield Wyoming will continue to be our medical insurance provider.  

There will be no changes in plan design from our current plan.  The premium cost sharing, if you participate in 

our wellness program, will remain at 90% paid by the Board and 10% paid by the employee.   

Dental Insurance News:  There are no changes to the Dental Plan.   

VSP Insurance News: NEW!! The Board is offering a plan upgrade.  You can remain or enroll in the Basic Plan 

or choose the Easy Options Upgrade.    

Flexible Spending Account (FSA) News: Employees who participate or want to participate in this program 

must make their annual election for the Medical FSA and/or the Dependent FSA during open enrollment.  The 

annual pre-tax deduction limit for the Medical Spending Account beginning July 1, 2020 is $2,750.   

WIN  Wellness News:   Details on the Board’s new wellness program will be released within the next couple of 

months. 

This year we are NOT holding Open Enrollment Meetings/Benefit Fair.  I will be sending out 

information on each Employee Benefit Insurance Plan for you to review. 

ONLY COMPLETE NEW FORMS IF YOU ARE ENROLLING OR MAKING CHANGES 

Representatives from BCBSWY, Delta Dental, and Human Resources are making audio recordings to  summarize 

each benefit plan.  When recordings are finalized, they will be made available to you. 

Understanding your benefits enables you to effectively utilize the plans when needed and to make the right 

decision for you and your family’s needs.   

Open Enrollment is your opportunity to have your questions answered, to learn more about the coverage provided 

by each plan, and to enroll or make changes to Health, Dental, Vision, and to FSA plans.   

Human Resources is available by phone, email, or in person to assist you. 

 

Thank you. 

Page 151 of 162



 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 LET’S CELEBRATE! 

    Years of Service 

Jun 3 

The Development and Application of 

Level of Service  

11:00 AM - 12:30 PM  

Online  

Jun 4 

FREE Webinar from Hach: New Insights 

and Technologies for Treatment Process 

Optimization  

11:00 AM - 12:00 PM  

Online  

Jun 5 

FREE Webinar: Workforce and COVID-

19: Utility Solutions  

11:00 AM - 12:30 PM  

Online 

 Jun 9 

FREE Webinar from GE Digital: It’s 

More Than Grayscale: Busting Myths 

About High Performance HMI  

11:00 AM - 12:00 PM  

Online  

Jun 11 

FREE Webinar from SL Environmental 

Law Group: How to Shift Drinking Water 

Treatment Costs From Ratepayers to 

Polluters  

11:00 AM - 12:00 PM  

Online  

Jun 18 

WOTUS and Maui – Parallel 

Developments Impact the Clean Water 

Act and Source Water Protection  

11:00 AM - 12:30 PM  

Online 

 Jun 24 

Current and Emerging Technologies for 

PFAS Treatment and Lessons Learned 

Webinar  

11:00 AM - 12:30 PM  

Online  

 

Jun 30 

FREE Webinar from Hach: Log 

Reduction For Drinking Water 

Production: What's In It For You?  

11:00 AM - 12:00 PM  

Online  

 

Erin Clapp 1 

Brett Davis 1 

Hannah Bussell 1 

Ryan Henderson 2 

Chris Martinez 9 

Linda Gunter 31 
 

ROSCOE SNIDER 6/5 

MARK MICKLE 6/14 

DARYLE JOHNSON 6/16 

CHRIS MARTINEZ 6/26 

TEL BIRDSLEY 6/27 

LYNN BUTTS 6/30 

 

American Water Works Association 

Page 152 of 162

https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/282
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/282
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/382
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/382
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/382
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/395
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/395
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/384
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/384
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/384
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/391
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/391
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/391
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/391
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/399
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/399
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/399
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/400
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/400
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/400
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/396
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/396
https://www.awwa.org/Events-Education/Events-Calendar/ctl/ViewEvent/mid/6794/OccuranceId/396


 

 

  

 

  

   

 

    

  

 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you hear of any newsworthy items, let us know so we can add to our newsletter! Send to                
rtripp@cheyennebopu.org 

Photo courtesy of Nick Dennis. 

Pictures are of the Water Treatment 

Plant. 

 

Page 153 of 162



1 
 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
Monthly Board Report 

June 15, 2020 

Water Main Leaks – May 

 Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total 

2020 4 5 1 2 1        13 

2019 6 5 2 4 3 1 0 1 2 4 1 7 36 

2018 8 4 5 3 0 3 3 1 3 10 4 8 52 

2017 14 9 2 3 1 3 0 2 2 3 9 8 56 

 Leak at 322 Sioux Dr on 5/22/20 – Hole on a 8” ductile iron pipe installed in 1984 

 
▪ 136 services were interrupted for an average of 2.5 hours for a leak, service line replacements, 

contractor work, a tap, and rehabs in May.   

Sewer Backups – May 

 Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total 

2020 2 1 6 1 2        12 

2019 1 2 1 2 4 1 1 1 1 0 0 3 17 

2018 1 1 1 2 0 1 3 0 0 0 1 1 11 

2017 1 0 3 4 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 0 14 

▪ Backup at 6900 block of Manhattan Ln – Roots, discovered during area cleaning, in an 8” VCP 
pipe installed in 1960 

▪ Backup at 4700 block of Pineridge/Moran alley - Roots, discovered during area cleaning, in an 8” 
VCP pipe installed in 1950 

 

Sewer Cleaning and Inspection – May 

▪ 3,132 feet of sewer main were video inspected in May 2020. (10.47 miles total this fiscal year) 
▪ 70,501 feet (13.3 miles) of sewer mains were cleaned for area cleaning in May 2020. (151.6 

miles total this fiscal year)  
▪ 14,811 feet (2.8 mile) of sewer mains were cleaned for sewer calls and preventative 

maintenance in May 2020. (25.0 miles total this fiscal year) 
▪ 2,833 feet (.5 mile) of sewer main were root cut in May 2020. (2.6 miles total this fiscal year) 

▪

Page 154 of 162



2 
 

▪ 0 feet (.0 miles) of sewer main was cleaned by mechanical rodding in May 2020. (1.21 mile total 
this fiscal year) 

Water Meters – May 

▪ 152 water meters were installed in the month of May 2020.  A total of 1255 meters have been 
installed this fiscal year. 

▪ There are currently 24,367 active meters in the water system as of 6/2/20. 13,038 are radio 
read, 5,050 are touch pad, 6,274 are E-coder radio read, and 3 ARB. 

Evers Blvd 

▪ Utility work is completed up to Vandehei 

Prairie Ave and Frontier Mall Dr Intersection 

▪ The City has revised the bidding documents and have re-advertised. 
▪ Bids will be opened on June 15, 2020 at 2:00 pm 

Capitol Basin 26th Street Extension 

▪ AVI has submitted the 60% plans 

North City Zone Improvements 

▪ WWDC agreements have all signatures and the SLIB agreement with loan origination fees have 
been returned for the Governor’s signature. 

▪ The RFP has been advertised and proposals are due June 24, 2020 

FY19 Water Rehabs  

▪ Project is substantially complete, and the contractor is working on punch list items. 

FY20 Water Rehabs 

▪ Pre-con held on June 3, 2020 
▪ Contractor is scheduled to start the project the week of June 8, 2020 

FY21 Water Rehabs and North Pressure Zone Interconnect and Expansion 

▪ Please refer to the recommendation of award for design services. 

FY19 Sewer Rehabs 

▪ Contractor is scheduled to line 5th, Deming, and Leisure the week of June 8, 2020 

FY20 Sewer Rehab 

▪ Engineer is working on final plans and DEQ permit. 

Allison Draw South Interceptor 

▪ Staff has reviewed and provided comments on 60% plans. 

Water and Wastewater Licenses and advancements 

▪ None 

Page 155 of 162



1 

 

WATER RECLAMATION MONTHLY REPORT 

June - 2020 

 
 

 

Monthly Total Influent Flows and Peak Day Flows (in million gallons): 

 

 

 Monthly Total Monthly Total Peak Day Peak Day 

 May -2020 May -2019 May -2020 May -2019 

Dry Creek WRF 162.72 182.82 6.20 9.17 

Crow Creek WRF 88.81 103.99 2.98 5.17 

Total 251.53 286.81 9.18 14.34 

 

                                                                       

Plant Removal Efficiency - WDEQ requires a minimum of 85% removal efficiency for BOD 

and TSS. A minimum removal efficiency of approximately 85% ensures ammonia is within 

acceptable limits.  

 

       Dry Creek WRF         Crow Creek WRF 

Month BOD* TSS** NH3*** BOD* TSS** NH3*** 

May 2020 98.6% 98.9% 99.2% 96.6% 97.1% 99.2% 

April 2020 99.1% 98.7% 98.2% 97.7% 97.7% 99.5% 

March 2020 98.8% 98.7% 90.9% 97.5% 97.7% 99.6% 

February 2020 98.9% 99.0% 95.2% 96.6% 96.6% 97.7% 

January 2020 99.2% 99.2% 98.5% 97.3% 97.1% 98.7% 

December 2019 98.6% 99.1% 99.1% 96.5% 96.9% 98.7% 

November 2019 99.1% 99.3% 99.0% 97.3% 97.7% 98.3% 

October 2019 98.6% 99.2% 99.4% 97.0% 97.2% 99.2% 

September 2019 97.8% 98.9% 99.3% 97.1% 96.9% 99.4% 

August 2019 99.1% 99.2% 99.4% 96.3% 95.8% 99.4% 

July 2019 99.0% 98.7% 98.2% 94.6% 96.6% 99.3% 

June 2019 99.2% 99.2% 97.0% 96.5% 96.8% 98.9% 

May 2019 99.3% 99.0% 98.7% 96.8% 97.3% 98.4% 

 

 

* BOD – Biochemical Oxygen Demand – A standard test used in assessing wastewater 

strength by measuring the rate at which organisms use the oxygen in wastewater while 

stabilizing decomposable organic matter under aerobic conditions. 

** TSS – Total Suspended Solids – All particulates in wastewater that do not pass through 

a glass fiber filter with a 1.5 to 2.4-micron pore size. 

***NH3 – Ammonia 

Page 156 of 162



2 

 

Water Reclamation Tours and Outreach:  

 

On May 29, Ashley Miller, Erin Lamb and Jason Land toured both the Dry Creek and 

Crow Creek facilities with Matt Buelow. Although it was a very hot Wyoming day, all 

parties involved seemed to enjoy it!   

 

 

Compliance Status at Dry Creek and Crow Creek WRFs:  

 

Effluent Selenium samples for the month of May 2020 were as follows: 

Crow Creek WRF: 2.0 ug/L 

Dry Creek WRF: 3.0 ug/L  

Our effluent discharge limit at both the Crow Creek and Dry Creek WRFs is 5 ug/L, with 

both facilities in compliance for the month of May 2020. Effluent metal samples for June 

2020 will be collected on the 9th and 10th, results were not available at the time of this 

submittal. 

 

 

Update on Water Reclamation Step Screens: 

 

Ryan Anderegg and Ryan Henderson completed the repair work on Step Screen 2 on May 

14.Upon completion, it was decided to have the channel cleaned prior to installation. Clint 

Bassett and his staff offered up 50 feet of flexible hose to help aid in the cleaning and 

Frank Strong and his crew provided the vac truck. This task is usually contracted out, but 

with the assistance of the Water Treatment and Operations and Maintenance Divisions, 

this tedious task took only an hour and a half to complete. The Water Reclamation 

Division is extremely thankful to both Divisions! 

 

 

   
 

 

EPA Compliance Audit: 

 

The Water Reclamation Compliance Staff continues to update and change the necessary 

items from the EPA’s report. One item that is currently being discussed is the path 

forward with HollyFrontier. Emilio Llamozas with Region 8 EPA has been notified of the 

future change for HollyFrontier and has advised staff to potentially look at extensions, 

rather than new permits.  

Page 157 of 162



3 

 

 

Dry Creek Centrifuges: 

 

GEA was onsite May 18 to start the major overhauls of both centrifuges. The technicians 

found that the rotating assembly for Centrifuge 1 was in great shape and only required 

the replacement of seals, gaskets, bearings, etc. However, the rotating assembly of 

Centrifuge 2 showed signs of wear. Many of the carbon tiles that are welded onto the scroll 

are either damaged or missing. Along with the damaged/missing tiles, the scroll has 

several holes in the housing. The Water Reclamation staff decided to send the scroll to 

New Jersey for a repair quote. Once the quote is received, the staff will decide how to 

proceed forward. The Water Reclamation staff is very pleased with the performance of 

Centrifuge 1. 

 

 

  
 

 

Old Pretreatment Roof at Crow Creek WRF: 

 

The old pretreatment roof at Crow Creek WRF has been in dire need of repair/replacement 

for many years. The Water Reclamation staff was able to contract with Swedes Roofing 

this May and have the roof replaced. During removal, Swedes Roofing noted that some 

decking was rotted and some of the truss supports were also rotted. Swedes Roofing 

notified staff and it was decided to have the faulty items replaced. Even with these 

additional items, they finished the replacement in just 4 days!    

 

     
 

 

 

 

 

Page 158 of 162



4 

 

 

Dewatering Project Status: 

 

Bryce Dorr and Matt Buelow met with Jacobs via Teams on May 21 to discuss the 

additional HVAC needed for the Dewatering Project. The new HVAC will alleviate the 

need to reclassify the thickening and dewatering building, while providing adequate heat 

to both. Jacobs is hopeful that the HVAC cost will be comparable to the sludge screen that 

has been removed from this project. Huber Technologies informed the Dewatering Team 

that they received unfavorable results after they conducted a bench test of the current 

secondary sludge at the Dry Creek WRF. Huber has asked that another set of sludge 

samples be sent to their laboratory for further testing.   

 

 

Asset Management Update: 

 

Jeff Foreman and Chris Brink provided an Asset Management “App” for the Water 

Reclamation Division. Randy Broughton, Cody Crecelius, Hannah Bussell and Matt 

Buelow met with Jeff and Chris on June 3 to discuss the next steps. The Water 

Reclamation staff will input data into the necessary tables and Jeff and Chris stated that 

they will progress forward with Primary and Secondary Clarification at both facilities. The 

Water Reclamation staff is delighted with the new program and they look forward to using 

it in their job activities!  

 

 

Local Limits Review Status: 

 

The Water Reclamation staff reviewed the latest Local Limits draft and have since sent 

them to Al Garcia with Region 8 EPA. Al stated that he plans on reviewing the drafts in 

the upcoming weeks. The study is progressing very well. Staff has not noticed any drastic 

changes in parameters as of now.  

 

 

Staff Announcements: 

 

The Water Reclamation staff would like to recognize Jacob Westra for successfully 

passing his Level 3 Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator examination on May 14! 

The Water Reclamation Division also welcomed a new wastewater operator, Hayden 

Winges, on June 4! Hayden is very excited to join the BOPU team and looks forward 

to a long career as a wastewater operator!   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 159 of 162



5 

 

 

Dry Creek Sprinkler System:  

 

The Water Reclamation staff takes great pride in the work they do and in the presentation 

of the overall appearance of the Division. With that being said, staff members, Daryl 

Kritzmire and Cody Crecelius, presented an idea to beautify an old field that had been 

overlooked for many years. This field, just east of Dry Creek’s Blower Building, once 

contained a luscious green lawn. With the multiple projects of the early 2000s, the 

sprinkler system that once fed this field went to the wayside. Luckily, Daryl Kritzmire has 

an extensive background in landscaping and was able to install a completely new system. 

With the help of Cody Crecelius, Daryl was able to pull new pipe, install new sprinkler 

heads, install a new water supply line and a new timer in just 4 days! The staff plans to 

reseed and fertilize with Biosolids in the coming weeks!  

 

             
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 160 of 162



1 
 

Water Treatment Division 
 

Operations 

Laboratory 

Lab staff restarted bench top analyses for the Surface Water/ Ground Water Blending Study. Staff will complete 3 
bench top analyses under summer conditions when reservoirs are stratified. The results are sent to HDR for 

inclusion in a final report that will be shared with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). The report 

will document the Board’s ability to reduce the groundwater percentage in Cheyenne’s drinking water.  
 

Staff received additional sampling requirements from the EPA to monitor water corrosivity and the effectiveness 

of the water treatment plant’s corrosion control treatment techniques. The new sampling requirements are called 
Optimized Water Quality Parameters. The EPA sent the new sampling requirements in response to the Board’s 

Surface Water/ Ground Water Blending Study. The additional sampling and reporting will monitor pH and 

alkalinity for water entering the distribution system and at lead/copper sampling locations. First reports are due in 

July. 
 

Treatment Plant 

Maintenance crews made repairs to the dredge that is used to remove solids from the wastewater settling pond 
(Pond 3) at the water treatment plant. Then the dredge was placed in the pond. Crews also assembled additional 

valving/piping to add six more drying bags in the drying beds. The work was completed to expand the plant’s 

ability to remove solids from Pond 3.  
     

Source of Supply 

Crews shut off collection structures in the Little Snake Drainage after filling Hog Park and conducted 

maintenance at Lake Owen.  
 

     
 

  

Page 161 of 162



2 
 

Water Quality 

Results of water quality testing during May 2020 = No violations.  

Fluoride levels – Operators fed approximately 0.2 mg/L of fluoride during April.  

 

 
Monthly Total Water Production Statistics 

 

 
 

Monthly Peak Production Statistics 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Total Water Production

From SCADA meters and changes in volume from treated water storage tanks

Millions of Gallons

Calendar 

Year Month

 Surface Water 

Delivered  

 Sherard 

Production 

 Bell Well Field 

to Round Top 

 Federal Well 

Field to Round 

Top 

 Happy Jack and 

Bell Well Fields 

to King II 

 Borie Well Field 

to King II 

 Total Well 

Production 

 Total Treated 

Water Supplied  Raw Water  Recycled Water 

 Total Water 

Supplied 

2011 5 252.92                   250.78                   13.21                      36.50                      54.59                      1.33                        105.63                   359.24                   6.87                        10.11                      376.22                   

2012 5 434.92                   437.70                   11.05                      23.78                      66.33                      69.44                      170.60                   601.15                   47.81                      32.34                      681.30                   

2013 5 284.78                   278.49                   7.60                        0.55                        69.57                      23.78                      101.50                   378.16                   13.06                      16.15                      407.37                   

2014 5 258.26                   251.93                   -                          0.71                        42.71                      42.64                      86.06                      336.06                   9.03                        10.05                      355.14                   

2015 5 191.85                   180.39                   -                          26.06                      37.93                      27.72                      91.71                      274.52                   0.76                        0.83                        276.11                   

2016 5 215.27                   209.60                   3.06                        4.19                        15.15                      56.89                      79.29                      290.99                   2.78                        0.93                        294.70                   

2017 5 223.26                   218.79                   -                          20.19                      39.20                      35.05                      94.44                      315.22                   4.55                        14.80                      334.57                   

2018 5 253.13                   248.17                   -                          2.96                        48.36                      35.64                      86.96                      334.32                   5.97                        14.05                      354.34                   

2019 5 215.00                   213.58                   -                          2.85                        33.93                      50.67                      87.45                      303.89                   5.62                        10.36                      319.86                   

2020 5 311.78                   301.34                   -                          -                          72.01                      24.02                      96.03                      398.14                   37.82                      27.83                      463.79                   

Peak Day Water Production

From SCADA meters and changes in volume from treated water storage tanks

Millions of Gallons

Calendar 

Year Month

 Surface 

Water 

Delivered  

 Peak 

Day(s)

 Sherard 

Production 

 Peak 

Day(s)

 Total Well 

Production 

 Peak 

Day(s)

 Total Treated 

Water 

Supplied 

 Peak 

Day(s)  Raw Water 

 Peak 

Day(s)

 Recycled 

Water 

 Peak 

Day(s)

 Total Water 

Supplied 

 Peak 

Day(s)

2011 5 12.22                9 12.99                9 5.74                  6 12.22                9 1.06                  4 1.48                  10 17.49                6

2012 5 18.83                30 18.54 30 8.1 31 22.88 30 2.17 6 1.93 15 26.03 30

2013 5 15.03                28 14.57 28 4.83 28 19.3 27 0.91 16 1.42 15 21.3 27

2014 5 12.02                28 11.86 28 3.95 27 15.19 29 1.15 3 1.13 30 16.96 29

2015 5 8.26                  31 7.2 31 3.73 31 11.37 3 0.23 1 0.63 1 11.72 1

2016 5 9.13                  19, 20 8.99 26 3.49 27,31 11.81 30 0.6 26 0.31 19 12.17 30

2017 5 9.46                  31 9.25 31 4.06 13 13.66 14 0.66 15 1.83 20 15.23 14

2018 5 12.12                23 12.13                23 4.36                  23 13.99                22 0.58                  25 1.33                  28 14.35                28

2019 5 11.35                16 11.24                16 3.49                  16 13.32                15 1.05                  15 2.88                  17 15.86                17

2020 5 14.70                27 14.35                27 4.24                  23 18.83                29 2.27                  13 1.85                  29 21.95                29

Page 162 of 162


	Cover
	Agenda
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3

	Minutes
	Minutes - May 18, 2020
	Minutes - May 22, 2020

	Financials
	Vouchers

	Approval Items
	Approve the Director to execute two ISAs
	Approve award to CarbonFilt LLC for Filter 6 Media project
	Approve contract renewal with Aetna
	Approve bid rejection for the Sherard HydroElectric Generation Facility Project
	Approve award to AVI, PC for FY2021 Water Rehab/N Pressure Zone/Expansion Project Design

	Projects
	Release of Retainage
	Contracts, Change Orders, Etc.

	Reports
	Directors Report
	Administration Report
	PR/Water Conservation Report

	Engineering & Water Resources Report
	Human Resources Report
	Operations & Maintenance Report
	Water Reclamation Report
	Water Treatment Report


